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CORPORATE PROFILE
~ B OE

Suncorp Technologies Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) are engaged principally in the design,
manufacture and marketing of approved telecommunications
products.

The Group is one of the manufacturers of telecommunications
products in the Asia Pacific region, supplying products to
leading brand names and telecommunications network
operators throughout the world.

The Group's manufacturing centre is situated at Liangtang
in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China. Its corporate
headquarters is located in Hong Kong. Its European subsidiary,
Suncorp Communications (Europe) Limited, is strategically
placed to support its marketing function in that region.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TR HRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or
“Director(s)"”) of Suncorp Technologies Limited (the
“Company”), | present to you the Group’s annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

INTRODUCTION

The results for the year 2007 were very disappointing.
The first half of the year 2007 saw the Company’s cost
reduction programme continue to deliver results. Selling and
distribution expenses were down 7.1% and administrative
expenses were reduced by 16.2% as compared to the same
period in 2006. With a renewed focus on the profitability of
individual products rather than the absolute level of sales or
current market share, gross profit was increased by 2.2%.
However, the manufacturing environment in Mainland China,
particularly in the Guangdong Province, became increasingly
challenging through the second half of the year 2007, with
the cost of producing goods rising substantially. Significant
increases in labour costs, a 7.3% appreciation of the RMB,
and unprecedented commodity price increases affecting
the cost of raw materials, were coupled with operational
difficulties in effecting the move from our high cost Shenzhen
facility to a lower-cost manufacturing base in Meizhou. These
factors had a serious impact on the Company’s performance
for the full year. Total sales for the year ended 31 December
2007 was HK$1,116 million, which was 36.8% less than the
corresponding figure for the year ended 31 December 2006,
which had a negative impact on the Company’s cash flow and
required us to raise new capital through (i) two rights issues
in the proportion of one rights share for every two existing
shares held on 3 January 2007 at HK$0.3 per rights share and
in the proportion of three rights shares for every ten existing
shares held on 8 August 2007 at HK$0.38 per rights share
respectively; (i) placing and top-up of which 61,460,000 new
shares were issued at a price of HK$0.39 per new share to a
substantial shareholder in September 2007; and (iii) a placing
of the convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$67.9 million of which a total of 679,000,000 new
conversion shares will be issued upon full conversion of the
convertible notes at HK$0.1 per conversion share.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR HE

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

The European market for consumer electronic products was
generally weak in 2007 and as a result became extremely
competitive and price sensitive. Nevertheless, there was
continuing demand for our core products, the DECT residential
cordless telephones, remains strong, and our customer
base includes some of the world’'s leading multi-service
communications providers.

However, forecast sales of Bluetooth products, videophone
products and cordless telephone products incorporating
multimedia services were not realised, as telecom network
operators experienced lower than expected demand. The
Board has therefore decided to recognise further provisions
among certain product ranges. The loss for the year ended
31 December 2007 was arrived at after charging impairment
losses on assets of HK$313 million. This charge is made up
of four items including impairment loss on trade and other
receivables from a jointly controlled entity of HK$210 million,
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment of HK$53
million, impairment loss on intangible assets of HK$49 million
and impairment loss on trade receivable of HK$1 million.

Sales in 2007 were down 36.8% over 2006. However, the
average selling price showed a slight improvement of 0.8%.
Gross profit fell from 6.2% in the first half to 3.8% in the
second half of the year 2007, resulting in 5.2% for the full
year. An increase of 62.5% as compared to the corresponding
figure for 2006.

Had we factored out all the non-cash items such as
depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges referred
to above, the loss for the year 2007 would have been HK$26
million and net cash from operations was HK$9.3 million.

In light of the Company’s continuing struggle to secure an
effective solution to its high manufacturing costs and with very
challenging conditions facing businesses worldwide, the Board
is currently reviewing a range of strategic options to streamline
the operations, reduce the cost base, improve the liquidity and
restore the profitability.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

. =

T EHmE

PROSPECT T

Though the result of 2007 is still disappointing, the Company BRE_ZZLEMEENRSAKRE
continues to put in place stringent cost cutting measures to BARBMDEEITRIENERK AT -
keep the overheads at a minimum. In order to preserve cash H%,i&% AYRBEZKEKTE - BREARN

and liquidity of the Company, the Board will continue to take
a prudent and risk aversive approach in managing the financial
affairs of the Group with a view to turn the Company back to
profitability as soon as possible.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank our customers, suppliers and staff for their continued
support, and to assure shareholders and noteholders that we
will work tirelessly to improve the Company’s performance.

On behalf of the Board

Dato’ Wong Sin Just
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 April 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEREWLR DN

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$1,116 million which represents
a decrease of 36.8% as compared to the corresponding figure
for the year ended 31 December 2006. The gross profit for
the year under review was approximately HK$58 million as
compared to approximately HK$57 million for the previous
year. Our operating profit was negatively impacted due to the
ever increasing in operating costs in Shenzhen area.

Finance costs decreased by 44.6% to HK$15 million, due
mainly to the drop in turnover during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Turnover by Product

2007

HK$ million

BHEBER

DECT DECT 821
VolP VolP 274
Cordless telephone BRER -
Corded telephone BRER 8
Others HAth 13
Total Bt 1,116

All of the Group’s turnover and contribution to results were
derived from the design, manufacture and sale of telephones
and related equipment. Our existing product range includes
corded telephones, VolIP, DECT and other telecom products.
DECT products accounted for approximately 73.6% of our
turnover for the year under review, down from 97.7% in the
previous year. During 2007, sales of VolP amounted to 24.5%,
sales of corded telephones amounted to 0.7% and sales of
other telephone products amounted to 1.2% of the Group’s
turnover.

Our customer base continues to comprise prime telecom
operating companies and telecom product distributors in
Europe and Asia Pacific. Customers in European countries
accounted for approximately HK$1,025 million and in Asia
Pacific region and other countries accounted for approximately
HK$91 million of the Group’s turnover respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEWLR DN

BALANCE SHEET

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Current assets MEEE
Current liabilities TEEE
Current ratio GiEI S

The decrease in current ratio was mainly due to the impairment
loss recognized on trade and other receivables from a jointly
controlled entity.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had cash on hand of
HK$12 million, net current liabilities of approximately HK$277
million, total assets of HK$249 million and shareholders’ deficit
of approximately HK$274 million.

Among current assets, total trade receivables decreased 19.7%
to HK$181 million with trade receivables with insurance
coverage increasing 82.3% to HK$145 million in comparing
with the previous year.

As of 31 December 2007, total bank borrowings has been
decreased by HK$62 million from the end of 2006.

Trust receipt loans EEBEER

Finance lease obligations RMEMHEET 2EH

Advances drawn on trade receivables X DIRREZEKRE F
with insurance coverage RN B

Advances drawn on bills receivables BYWEzEBEREY
discounted with full recourse FERE R 2 #5%

Total bank borrowings RITEERE

RESER
RBESRHRER
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH5 FH7
243,527 439,874
520,197 611,848
0.47 0.72
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

E BRI

vl

BALANCE SHEET (continued)

Gearing Ratio

Total assets BEME
Total bank borrowings RITEEBE
Ratio of bank debt to total assets FITEREEEREBE LXK

No debt to equity ratio is available as the Group is in a negative
equity position.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 128,788 new shares
were issued at exercise price of HK$0.286 per share upon the
exercise of share options by options holder.

On 11 December 2006, the Company announced a proposed
rights issue in the proportion of one rights share for every two
shares in the share capital of the Company held on 3 January
2007. The rights issue was completed in 26 January 2007 and
the Company issued a total sum of 204,871,830 new shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.3 per rights share which
successfully raised approximately HK$61.5 million before
expenses.

On 26 June 2007, the Company announced a proposed rights
issue in the proportion of three rights shares for every ten
shares in the share capital of the Company held on 8 August
2007. The rights issue was completed on 31 August 2007 and
the Company issued a total sum of 184,384,647 new shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.38 per rights share which
successfully raised approximately HK$70.1 million before
expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEWLR DN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

On 13 September 2007, the Company announced that the
Company, SunCorp Partners Limited (“SPL”) and SBI E2-
Capital Asset Management Limited entered into a placing and
subscription agreement whereby (i) SPL agreed to sell, and SBI
E2-Capital Asset Management Limited agreed to purchase,
100,000,000 shares at the price of HK$0.39 per share; and
(i) the Company has agreed to issue, and SPL has agreed to
subscribe for, 61,460,000 new shares at the price of HK$0.39
per subscription share. The placing of 61,460,000 new shares
was completed on 20 September 2007 which successfully
raised approximately HK$24 million before expenses.

On 18 December 2007, the Company announced that the
Company and SBI E2-Capital (HK) Limited entered into the
placing agreement dated 13 December 2007 whereby the
Company conditionally agreed to place, through on a best
efforts basis, the convertible notes in the aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$100 million. On 31 March 2008, the
Company announced that the placing of the convertible notes
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$67.9 million was
completed on 28 March 2008 in accordance with the terms
of the said placing agreement. The convertible notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$67.9 million have been
placed by SBI E2-Capital (HK) Limited, on best effort basis, to
not less than 6 independent placees who are professional and
institutional investors and are independent third parties (as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)).
Upon full conversion of the convertible notes at HK$0.10
per conversion share, a total of 679,000,000 new conversion
shares will be issued.

EXCHANGE RATE

All sales in the current year were in US dollars and the majority
of the Group expense was in EURO, RMB and HK dollars. The
appreciation of RMB on the other hand also had a negative
impact on our cost structure. The Group studied and discussed
with its banks the possibility of hedging against the RMB, but
ultimately decided against this as the premium was considered
too expensive. The Group does not speculate in currencies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEREWLR DN

EXCHANGE RATE (continued)

All bank borrowings of the Group were mainly made in HK
dollars, US dollars, GBP and carried interest at fixed-rate except
the trust receipt loans which carried interest at variable rates.

INVESTMENTS

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
year under review.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 28 February 2007, the Company was served with an
Amended Writ issued and filed by Uniden Corporation
("Uniden”) and Uniden Hong Kong Limited (“Uniden HK")
on 1 February 2007 against the Company, SPL and the
Company’s three Directors and a former Director, alleging that
certain misrepresentations had been made by the Company
and its three Directors and a former Director, and that the
Company had breached the warranties of the subscription
agreement, and the terms of the business alliance agreement
and the master production agreement. On the basis of these
allegations, Uniden sought, inter alia, (i) a recession of the
subscription agreement, pursuant to which Uniden HK acquired
82,000,000 new shares in the Company, and the consequential
return of the relevant subscription money of HK$143,500,000;
(i) damages for misrepresentation or breach of warranty; (iii)
damages for breach of the business alliance agreement and the
master production agreement; and (iv) the legal costs of this
action, plus interest.

On 6 February 2007 and 20 March 2007, the Company issued
announcements, in relation to these legal proceedings and the
termination by the Company of the business alliance agreement
and the master production agreement. The Company and
its three Directors and a former Director strongly refute and
intend to vigorously contest Uniden’s allegations, and are of
the opinion, having taken legal advice, that the action can be
successfully defended.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEWLR DN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

On 2 August 2007, the Company served a defence and a
counterclaim against Uniden and Uniden HK for damages
of HK$354 million (plus interest) based on the breaches by
Uniden and Uniden HK of the terms of the master production
agreement and the business alliance agreement. Uniden served
its reply and defence to the counterclaim on 13 November
2007. Up to the date of this annual report, the Court has
not yet laid down a timetable for the next stages of the
proceedings.

In addition, a subsidiary of the Company was named as
a defendant in a High Court action and a District Court
Civil action in respect of alleged breaches of contractual
undertakings for an amount of HK$1,651,830 and
HK$674,856, respectively. The subsidiary strongly resists these
claims.

In additional to the above, in September 2006, the Group
has given financial guarantees to two banks in respect of
the credit facilities of HK$56,634,000 granted to Shenzhen
Guo Wei Electronics Co., Ltd. ("Guo Wei") for a period of
ten months. During the year ended 31 December 2007,
the repayment period was extended by the banks to March
2008. As at 31 December 2007, the credit facilities utilised
by Guo Wei amounting to approximately HK$950,000 (2006:
HK$31,504,000). The relevant bank loans were repaid by Guo
Wei in March 2008.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2007, the capital expenditure in
respect of acquisition of intangible assets and plant and
machinery contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements amounted to approximately HK$2,449,000 (2006:
HK$1,776,000) and HK$1,061,000 (2006: Nil) respectively.

EMPLOYEES

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to the executive Directors and employees as an
incentive to their contribution to the Group. During the year
under review, the Group had granted a total of 12,665,000
share options before adjustment for rights issue to the
employees in accordance with the share option scheme.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A AE R

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Dato’ WONG Sin Just (Chairman)

Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai

Non-executive Director:
Mr. MAK Chee Bun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie, JP
Mr. Edward Hungerford MILWARD-OLIVER
Mr. HO Kwan Tat

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHEUNG Chung Wai, Billy

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Hong Kong:

Morrison & Foerster
Bermuda:

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
United Commercial Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
D F A M

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Rooms 1907-08, Harcourt House

39 Gloucester Road

Wanchai
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
14 Bermudiana Road

Hamilton

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.suncorptech.com

STOCK CODE
1063
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkEREEAERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato’ WONG Sin Just, aged 42, is an executive Chairman
of the Company. Dato’ Wong possesses over 19 years
of accounting, investment banking and venture capital
experience. He held senior positions with a number of premier
international investment banks prior to joining the Company.
Dato’ Wong holds a Bachelor Degree in Engineering (First
Class Honours) from Imperial College, University of London
and was qualified as an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants, England and Wales. Dato’ Wong is currently the
Chief Investment Officer of SBI E2-Capital Asset Management
Limited, the Chairman of SBI E2-Capital Group, the Vice
Chairman of China Renji Medical Group Limited. He is also the
director and member of the audit committee of CDC Software
Corporation, an independent non-executive director of China.
com Inc., Capital Strategic Investment Limited and China
Zenith Chemical Group Limited, all of which are companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON, aged 58, is responsible
for the Group’s overall marketing and product development
strategy. He is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

LEUNG Shek Kong, aged 50, is responsible for the PRC
operation of the Group. Mr. Leung has more than 32 years’
experience in the electronics industry.

CHEUNG Chi Wai, aged 41, is responsible for the engineering
and research and development of the Group. He has been
working in the telecommunications industry for 19 years.
He was educated in Hong Kong and has a BSc in Electronic
Engineering, an MPhil in High Frequency Circuit Design and
a MBA in Information Technology. He is a Chartered Engineer
and a member of the Institute of Engineering and Technology.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERNSREEAEBE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MAK Chee Bun, aged 57, was Vice President, Finance at a
major Asian Conglomerate for over 12 years and the Regional
Finance Director of a leading global lighting equipment
manufacturer. He has over 32 years experience in the finance
and accounting field in Hong Kong, Europe, the PRC and
Canada. He was educated in Hong Kong and has a Masters
degree in Business Administration. He is a Certified General
Accountant of Canada.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. HUI Ka Wah, Ronnie, JP, aged 44, graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Medicine and
Bachelor of Surgery and holds the Diploma of Child Health at
Royal College of Physicians & Surgeons in Ireland and at Royal
College of Physicians & Surgeons of Glasgow. He is a member
of the Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom,
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
(Paediatrics) and the Hong Kong College of Paediatricians.
He has been practicing as a registered medical practitioner in
Hong Kong since 1987 and has been registered as Specialist
in Pediatrics since 2001. He is a CFA (Chartered Financial
Analyst) Charterholder and also holds the degree of Master of
Business Administration conferred by Universitas 21 Global.
Dr. Hui is the Head of Corporate Investment of Group Sense
(International) Limited and Corporate Marketing Director of
Quam Securities Limited. Dr. Hui is the Executive Director of
Town Health International Holdings Company Limited and
Hong Kong Health Check and Laboratory Holdings Company
Limited. He is the Vice Chairman & Executive Director of
Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of CASH Financial Services
Group Limited, E2-Capital (Holdings) Limited and Winbox
International (Holdings) Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkEREEAERBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Edward Hungerford MILWARD-OLIVER, aged 59, has over
36 years' experience in the information and communications
industries in the UK and Asia. He is the founder of One
Heritage, before which he was the Executive President of
a prominent Jasdag-listed new media company. He was a
founding shareholder of Asia’s first satellite-TV business
channel, and earlier served on the business plan development
team for Asia’s first regional satellite system.

HO Kwan Tat, aged 43, is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong and is a director of a CPA firm. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in accounting
and audit. Mr. Ho is also an independent non-executive director
of The Sun’s Group Limited, E2-Capital (Holdings) Limited and
Midland IC&I Limited, all of which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FOK Man Fai, aged 55, is our General Manager of
manufacturing operations. He has over 20 years’ working
experience in planning, management and cost control in the
manufacturing field in Hong Kong and The People’s Republic of
China.

CHEUNG Tat Leung, Peter, aged 37, is our Financial
Controller and Qualified Accountant. He has over 15 years’
working experience in the finance, accounting and auditing
fields. He was educated in Hong Kong, he holds a Bachelor
degree in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

CHEUNG Chung Wai, Billy, aged 45, is our Company
Secretary. He holds Bachelor and Master degrees in Laws and a
Bachelor of Social Sciences degree. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Financial Services Institute of Australasia.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERNSREEAEBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Stanley Charles GAME, aged 60, is the General Manager
of Suncorp Communications (Europe) Limited. He has been
working in the telecommunications industry for 19 years. He
holds a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in History and Politics and a
Masters degree in Business Administration.

Lesley TAYLOR, aged 34, is our Head of Design. She was
educated in the United Kingdom and holds a Bachelor of
Arts (Hons) degree. Miss Taylor has been working in the
telecommunications industry for over 9 years.

TSANG Suk Shan, Tracy, aged 37, is our New Concepts
Manager responsible for the realisation of new technologies.
She was educated in Hong Kong and Australia, and holds
a Bachelors degree in International Business Studies and a
Masters degree in Business Administration. Miss Tsang has
been working in the telecommunications industry for over 12
years.

YU Yuk Ling, Sheena, aged 34, is our Marketing Manager.
She was educated in Hong Kong and holds a Bachelors degree
in International Business Studies. Miss Yu has been working in
the telecommunications industry for over 11 years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Government Report together with annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to high standards of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality
Board, sound internal control, transparency, independence and
accountability to all shareholders.

Throughout the financial year of 2007, the Group have applied
the principles and complied with the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules unless otherwise stated which in the
opinion of the Board is not appropriate to follow.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the
requirements of the CG Code. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are summarized as
follows:

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

The Board is mandated with promoting the success of the
Company by providing leadership and supervising control of
the business of the Group.

At present, members of the Board are:

Executive Directors:

Dato’ WONG Sin Just (Chairman)

Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. MAK Chee Bun

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie, JP
Mr. Edward Hungerford MILWARD-OLIVER

Mr. HO Kwan Tat

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
15 to 17 of this Annual Report.

Under the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have
at least three INEDs, at least one of whom must have the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The number of INEDs has met
the requirement of the Listing Rules and represented more
than one third of the total Board members. Further more than
one of them have appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the INED has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirement of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of
the guidelines. Regular review will be made on the Board
composition to ensure it has a balance of skills, expertise and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company.

INEDs are expressly identified in all the Company’s publication
such as announcements, circular or relevant corporate
communications in which the names of Directors of the
Company as disclosed.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure
for the new appointment of Directors to the Board. The Board
will first consider necessary changes in respect of the structure,
size and composition of the Board and to identify suitably
qualified candidates. In accordance with the existing Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), every newly appointed
Director shall hold office till the next following general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest but not less than one-third) should retire from office by
rotation at least once every three years. For the avoidance of
doubt, all Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation.

Non-Executive Directors (Deviation from Code
Provision A.4.1)

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term
subject to re-election. None of the existing non-executive
Directors and INEDs are engaged on specific term, and it
constituted a deviation of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG
Code. However all Directors, including non-executive Directors
and INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation at each annual
general meeting at least once every three years under the Bye-
laws. In the circumstances, the Board considers that the present
practice has already addressed the concerns of the CG Code in
this respect.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

EEECEARRER (B)

EEEERNARESHER

Numbers of Board Meetings and Directors’
Attendance

R-ZEZLFOBYBEE EZE8

During the financial year of 2007 under review, ten board

meetings were held (Note 1) and the attendance of each AT7Ttrezd (MaE) SEF2LE
Director at the Board meetings was as follows: ENB RN
Attendance/
Number of Board meetings
HER/
Name of Directors EEng EZEEERY
Dato’ WONG Sin Just (Note 2) EREEE (Wit2) 2/2
Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON Malcolm Stephen
JACOBS-PATONY T & 8/8
Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong RGN 4/8
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai RERLE 10/10
Mr. MAK Chee Bun (Note 3) BERELE (KiE3) 718
Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie (Note 4) TRERE (Hit4) [
Mr. Edward Hungerford MILWARD-OLIVER Edward Hungerford
MILWARD-OLIVER % 4 8/10
Mr. HO Kwan Tat (Note 5) ABERE (H5E5) 0/0
Mr. Peter Francis AMOUR (Note 6) BmESE (Kit6) 8/8
Mr. Stanley CHAN (Note 7) BRABELE (K1:t7) 9/9
Mr. Thomas CHIA (Note 8) B RE (Bi28) 5/10
Mr. CHAN Kam Tim (Note 9) RIBARLE (H79) 171
Notes: W
1. For the reason of conflict of interest, Mr. Peter Francis 1. MRS EANZEE £-_TT+45

AMOUR, Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON, Mr. MAK FREEET I RMAEES S5

Chee Bun and Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong did not participate in the
Board discussion, nor vote upon the resolutions in two of the
Board meetings held during the financial year of 2007.

Dato’ WONG Sin Just was appointed as executive Chairman on
18 September 2007.

Mr. MAK Chee Bun was re-designated as non-executive
Director on 22 November 2007.

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie was appointed as INED on 22
November 2007.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Numbers of Board Meetings and Directors’
Attendance (continued)

Notes: (continued)

5. Mr. HO Kwan Tat was appointed as INED on 31 March 2008.

6. Mr. Peter Francis AMOUR resigned as executive Director on 4
March 2008.

7. Mr. Stanley CHAN resigned as INED on 22 November 2007.

8. Mr. Thomas CHIA resigned as INED on 31 March 2008.

9. Mr. CHAN Kam Tim was appointed as non-executive Director
on 22 November 2007 and resigned on 7 April 2008.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on
an ad hoc basis, as required by business needs. The Bye-
laws allows Board meetings to be conducted by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment
and any resolutions to be passed by way of written resolutions
circulated to and signed by all Directors from time to time
when necessary unless such as are temporarily unable to act
through ill-health or disability, and all the alternate Directors, if
appropriate, whose appointers are temporarily unable to act as
aforesaid.

At least 14 days' notice for regular Board meetings and notice
in reasonable days for non-regular Board meetings are given
to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them had an
opportunity to attend the meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied
with. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are sent
to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a
regular Board meeting (and the same arrangements are made
so far as practicable for other Board meetings).
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings (continued)

Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comment before execution and approval. All
Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and available
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director. Every Director is entitled to have access to Board
papers and related materials and has access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board is led by the executive Chairman and due to the
scale of the operation, the Board opines that it is not necessary
to appoint a Chief Executive Officer and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department heads
and various committees.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspect of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference which
describes the authorities and duties of the respective Board
committee. The terms of reference are available to shareholders
for inspection at the principal place of business of the
Company. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions
of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary,
are circulated to all Board members and the committees are
required to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures and
arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section
“Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings” above, have been
adopted for committee meetings so far as practicable.

At present, the members of each Board Committee are:

Audit Committee

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie (Chairman)
Mr. Edward Hungerford MILWARD-OLIVER

Mr. HO Kwan Tat
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. HO Kwan Tat (Chairman)
Mr. Edward Hungerford MILWARD-OLIVER

Dato” WONG Sin Just

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an important link between
Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the audit of the Company. The Audit Committee
was established in March 2000 and currently consists of three
members, all of whom are INEDs.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
appointment of auditors on an annual basis including a review
of the audit scope and approval of the audit fees; ensuring
continuing auditor objectivity and to safeguard independence
of the Company’s auditors, meeting with the auditors to discuss
issues arising from the final audit and any matters the auditors
suggest to discuss; reviewing the effectiveness of the external
audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation; reviewing
the annual, interim and quarterly report prior approval by the
Board in accordance with the accounting polices and practices
and relevant accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the
legal requirements; serving as a focal point for communication
between other Directors and the auditors in respect of the
duties relating to financial and other reporting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice according to the Company's policy if considered
necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the financial year of 2007 under review, four committee
meetings were held and the attendance of each committee
member at the committee meetings was as follows:

Name of Committee members

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie (Note 1)
Mr. Edward Hungerford MILWARD-OLIVER

Mr. HO Kwan Tat (Note 2)
Mr. Stanley CHAN (Note 3)
Mr. Thomas CHIA (Note 4)
Mr. CHAN Kam Tim (Note 5)

%1‘2?5 (%)

ZEEMENSE

FAREELE (W)
Edward Hungerford

MILWARD-OLIVER % 4

ARERE (Hit2)
RABEL (K73
BELFRE (Hit4)
REBAELE (H5)

Hiat -

Notes:

1. Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie was appointed as Audit Committee 1.
member on 22 November 2007.

2. Mr. HO Kwan Tat was appointed as Audit Committee member 2.
on 31 March 2008.

3. Mr. Stanley CHAN resigned as Audit Committee member on 3.
22 November 2007.

4. Mr. Thomas CHIA resigned as Audit Committee member on 31 4.
March 2008.

5. Mr. CHAN Kam Tim was appointed as Audit Committee 5.

member on 22 November 2007 and resigned on 7 April 2008.

tFOBEYBEE B8
REH - BRBZHERRLT

Attendance/

Number of Committee
meetings attended
HER/
ZEEERRY

0/0

4/4
0/0
4/4
2/4
0/0
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the committee meetings held in the financial year of
2007, the Audit Committee performed the work summarized
below:

- Reviewing the financial reports and results
announcements for the following financial period before
submission to the Board for approval:

for the year ended 31 December 2006

for three months ended 31 March 2007

- for six months ended 30 June 2007

- for nine months ended 30 September 2007

- Reviewing the external auditors’ independence
and report recommending to the Board for the re-
appointment of the external auditors at the 2007 annual
general meeting.

The announcement results of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2007 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established for the
purposes of supervising on the compliance of the Company’s
remuneration system; making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’'s policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management; establishing of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policies on such
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman about
their proposal relating to the remuneration of executive
Directors. No Directors and executives can determine his/her
own remuneration.

There was no meeting of Remuneration Committee held during
the financial year of 2007 under review.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors should acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007,
the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Statements
of Standard Accounting Practice and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the applicable laws were complied with. The Directors
believe that they have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and made judgment and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable and have ensured the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's external
auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 43 to 46.

Internal Control System

The Board maintains a sound and effective internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets. The internal control system is designed
to provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial and management
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Directors periodically conduct review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal controls, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the financial year of 2007, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
were set out belows:

Services rendered for the Group nAEERMEZRE
Audit services B R
Non-audit services: FEZR -
— Taxation and professional services - MERBZERS
— Other professional services - Hth X RS
Total: mEt

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. Based
on specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the financial year of 2007.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and, in particular, use annual general meetings
or other general meetings to communicate with shareholders
and encourage their participation. The chairman of the Board
as well as the chairman of the audit committee or in the
absence of the chairman of such committee, another member
of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate,
are attend the general meetings and are available to answer
questions at the general meetings.

BMERZH ()

MEZEBE S

R-FTLFEMBEE  ERNARASN
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T

Fees paid/payable to
external auditors
ENREMIPEZEMZER
HK$'000

FET

1,855

188
6,847

8,890
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Details of poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders
to demand a poll are included in all circulars to shareholders
and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the business day following
the general meeting.

To promote communication, the Company maintains website
at www.suncorptech.com where extensive information and
updates on the Company's business developments and
operations, financial information and other information are
posted.

On behalf of the Board

Dato’ Wong Sin Just
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 April 2008
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and it also
provides corporate management services. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design and sales of telephone and
related products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 47.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past financial years is set out on page 132.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 84% of the turnover of the Group
and the largest customer accounted for approximately 32% of
the turnover of the Group while the largest supplier, Shenzhen
Guo Wei Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Guo Wei") accounted for 56%
of the purchases of the Group.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a
director (within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) or a shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or the
largest supplier.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$11,190,000 on property, plant and equipment.

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

WONG Sin Just
- Chairman
LEUNG Shek Kong
Malcolm Stephen JACOBS
— PATON
CHEUNG Chi Wai

(Appointed on 18 September 2007)

(Appointed on 15 February 2007)

Peter Francis AMOUR (Resigned on 4 March 2008)

Non-executive directors:

CHAN Kam Tim (Appointed on 22 November 2007
and resigned on 7 April 2008)
MAK Chee Bun (Re-designated from
executive director to
non-executive director on
22 November 2007)

Independent non-executive directors:

Edward Hungerford
MILWARD-OLIVER
HUI Ka Wah, Ronnie, JP (Appointed on 22 November 2007)

HO Kwan Tat (Appointed on 31 March 2008)

Stanley CHAN (Resigned on 22 November 2007)

Thomas CHIA (Resigned on 31 March 2008)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Clause 86(2) of the Company's Bye-laws,
Dato' WONG Sin Just, Dr. HUI Ka Wah, Ronnie and Mr. HO
Kwan Tat retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Clauses 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company's
Bye-laws, Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON and Mr. LEUNG
Shek Kong retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of the independent non-executive
directors is the period from the date of appointment up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EERFTETHRAEZROESR
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2007, the interests of the directors, chief N_ZE+FE+_A=+—H &%
executive and their associates in the shares of the Company TETRABRBEIHEALTEARR
and its associated corporations as recorded in the register AIRERBEIBKOT  BALHERAK
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the NERBEFLBEGAHI((ELFRBAE
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise 1&H) EIEGFEZRELM iR
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant BrFMAREEHITEERHZIZEST
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of AMABANEARR BRI EENT
Listed Companies were as follows:

Long position 39
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company AR A ZREEO. 18T BEHK

Number of ordinary shares held

FrisEERHE
Percentage
of the issued
Personal Corporate share capital
Name of Director interests interests of the Company
BERARE BT
BEEpR AR NEER BREBDL
(Note 1)
(Het1)
%

Peter Francis AMOUR BhiE 16,268,000 - 1.89

Malcolm Stephen JACOBS — PATON 782,343 - 0.09

LEUNG Shek Kong RHBH 52,715,694 76,416,422 (Note 2)(ff1i#2) 15.01

MAK Chee Bun EHE 4,014,951 - 0.47

Thomas CHIA gt 90,000 - 0.0

CHAN Kam Tim REPIA 61,555,350 - 7.15

Notes: Wit

1. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of the 1. R B 2 Ty ER R MR &R G5 B
Company's issued share capital of 860,588,925 as enlarged by EXTKBEARRARAKLBERDEITRA
the completion of the rights issues and share placement. 860,588,925/ 51 & -

2. Mr. Leung is also deemed to be interested in 76,416,422 2. BN A% EBENSUnCorp Partners
shares of the Company held by SunCorp Partners Limited, Limitedf R AE FTTF =D 2 — =X
as he is entitled to exercise one third or more of the voting A B RH - MR B+ B SunCorp
power in its general meeting. Partners LimitedPT4576,416,422% 78

DA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
IN SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the share option disclosed under the
heading of “Share Options” and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held in trust for the Group, at 31
December 2007, none of the directors, chief executives and
their associates, had any interests or short positions in any
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options held by the directors and employees during the
year:

%%&EEﬁﬁAEZEﬁEE
=

R ESCPTIER & RIRIRIE [ AR 4 |78 B
B ERERAEATAAREE
AN E R A 2 & TREABRD LRI -
R_ZEZ+F+_A=+—-RH EF-
TBTRABRBSZHMBEATHER
R ) 3R AT AR B A B 2 AR AR A A
BEEMESIRE o

BRE
ARRlz BREEFRHANGAMS
&M FE32

Ti‘%%&*%%&(@ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ A i
BERFERNE

Exercise Balance ~ Granted  Exercised Lapsed Expired Balance
Date of price per at during during during during at
Directors Notes  grant Exercise period share 112007  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 31.12.2007
R-BBLE R-BBLE
] N ] ARt
Ezit1 Wi RAEH kg ’éﬂ&‘hfiﬁi EH EREE EAAR FARN ERER bi
HK
AT
(Note a) (Note 3) (Note a)
Wita)  (Wda)  (Wda)
Peter Francis AMOUR (b) 4.12.2002 4.12.2002 - 3.12.2007 0.286 127,578 - - - (127578) -
i (b) 3.3.2003 332003 -2.3.2008 03717 1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
(b) 9.12.2003 9.12.2003 - 8.12.2008 0999 1939185 - - - - 193918
(b) 16.3.2004 16.3.2004 - 15.3.2009 0976 1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
Malcolm Stephen (b) 4.12.2002 4.12.2002 - 3.12.2007 0286 1,530,936 - - - (1,530,930 -
JACOBS - PATON (b) 3.3.2003 33.2003-2.3.2008 03717 1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
(b) 9.12.2003 9.12.2003 - 8.12.2008 0999 1,939,185 - - - - 1939185
(b) 16.3.2004 16.3.2004 - 15.3.2009 0976 1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
LEUNG Shek Kong (b) 4.12.2002 4.12.2002 - 3.12.2007 0.286 127,578 - - - (127578) -
251 (b) 3.3.2003 332003 -2.3.2008 03717 1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
(b) 9.12.2003 9,12.2003 - 8.12.2008 0999 1939185 - - - - 193918
(b) 16.3.2004 16.3.2004 - 15.3.2009 0976 1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
MAK Chee Bun (b) 4.12.2002 4.12.2002 - 3.12.2007 0.286 127578 - (127578) - - -
552 (b) 332003 332003 -2.3.2008 0377 1,122,686 - - - - 1122686
(b) 9.12.2003 9.12.2003 - 8.12.2008 0999 1,939,185 - - - - 1939185
(b) 16.3.2004 16.3.2004 - 15.3.2009 0976 1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
CHEUNG Chi Wi (b)&(e)  25.5.2007 25.5.2007 - 24.5.2012 0.409 - 11887 - - - 11887
3k
Subtotal /it 18651898 1188727 (127,578) - (1786,092) 17,926,955
Employees (Other than directors)
B2 (FafES)
(b) 4.12.2002 4.12.2002 - 3.12.2007 0.286 20412 - - - (20,412) -
(0)&()  9.12.2003 9.12.2003 - 8.12.2008 0999 1,086,964 - - - - 1,086,964
(b)&(d)  18.10.2004 18.4.2005 - 17.10.2009 2058 1,861,758 - - (1,861,758) - -
(b)&(e)  25.5.2007 25.5.2007 - 24.5.2012 0.409 - 11,357,291 - (2,133,166) - 9224125
Sub-total /N 2,969,134 11,357,291 - (3,994,924) (20,412) 10,311,089
Total &3t 2621030 12546018 (127578)  (3,994,924)  (1,806,504) 28,238,044
2R LEEFH FRNEERAF |35
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The number and exercise price of the share options have
been adjusted in the above table to reflect the rights issues
completed in January and August 2007 respectively.

The options were granted pursuant to a share option scheme
of the Company adopted on 23 May 2002.

The options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50% of the
options are exercisable from 9 December 2003 to 8 December
2004; (i) all remaining options are exercisable from 9
December 2004 to 8 December 2008.

Options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50% of the options
are exercisable from 18 April 2005 to 17 October 2005; (ii) all
remaining options are exercisable from 18 October 2005 to 17
October 2009.

Options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50% of the options
are exercisable from 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2008; (i) all
remaining options are exercisable from 25 May 2008 to 24
May 2012.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$0.280.

BRE(E)

(a)

ERFIERE BB RITEES R
RBAEKR-_ZTLF-ANRNAR
Pz BB A%

AZEBBEDRBEARAN_-TT
FAAZT=ZARMZBRETER
Ho

ZEBRER TIAITER - EARUT
RE:(BM-ZE=F+_ANBR
ZE_TEMFE+-ANBILEREAT
EHR%50% 2 BAHE (DR TR
BEIH-_ETMNFT-_ANBER
“EENFTZANBEBETE -

ZEERER TIATE - ERRIUAT
RE: (M -_ZZREFNA+/\BE
E-ETRFTATERLESREAT
EHRZ50% 2 A : (DR TFIARE
BETH_ETAFTAT\BEE
“EEAFTATEHEHRETE -

ZEBRBEATTUITE  EEASZUT
BR:(HB_ZTE+LFRA=-TAHH
REZZTN\FRHAZTMAB LK
A{T{FE & %50% 2 BARHE : (iR T AT
EERETH-_SENFREA-_tH
HEE-_ZT——FRA-F+WMAILH
Faﬁﬁﬁ °

(R EXFTEE SN AN R) A A
BRANFATMERBETLEMNR
B NERARBZEFAERUEARRA
FAT T EAER 2 ) S ERERE e o

ERBIEREITER B AARKRND
Z U R0.280/8 7T ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS TERE

As at 31 December 2007, the register of substantial BRIEENTETBABEZRGER]IA
shareholders maintained pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO BREZEDIN BARBER ﬂ%&iﬁ
showed that other than the interests disclosed in “Directors’ EHROIEBKRFECETERREE

and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares”, the following FIE  RZETLFTA=1T— EI
shareholders had notified the Company of its relevant interests ERMRARNB B ETRAZBAERZMN

in the issued capital of the Company. RN ZBRELT »
Long position 33
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company AL a2 REE. 1E T BBR
Percentage
of the issued
share capital
Number of of the
Name Capacity shares held Company
¥ NG|
28T
=L 8] FrisRH 88 [ NER e
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Htet1) (Htet2)
%
Clear Smart Enterprises Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 103,868,000 12.07
(B1et3) EREEA
SunCorp Partners Limited (Note 4) Beneficial owner 76,416,422 8.88
(Kizta) EREEA
Uniden Hong Kong Limited Beneficial owner 83,100,000 9.66
ERBEEA
Notes: Bt
1, The information given above on the number of shares held 1. E iRt ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂxf ZHEEH
is based on notifications received by the Company as at 31 TIREARA —EETL+EFE+ A
December 2007. E‘|‘—EIL|&§‘JZL%M# o
2. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis 2. FZIEE P L TR B R ST L AR
of the Company’s issued share capital of 860,588,925 as B EEEEARR TZ,%%}},%jiE?é‘ﬁ
enlarged by the completion of the rights issues and share 1% 4<860,588,925% 5T & ©
placement.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

3. Mr. Shelly San Singhal is the beneficial owner of the
entire share capital of Clear Smart Enterprises Limited.
In accordance with the SFO, Mr. Singhal is deemed to be
interested in 103,868,000 shares of the Company held by
Clear Smart Enterprises Limited.

4. Mr. Leung Shek Kong, an executive director of the Company,
is also deemed to be interested in 76,416,422 shares of the
Company held by SunCorp Partners Limited, as he is entitled
to exercise one third or more of the voting power as its
general meeting.

Other than the interests disclosed above as at 31 December
2007, the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

GUARANTEES TO AFFILIATED COMPANY

As at 31 December 2007, the guarantees given by the Group
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to Guo Wei
amounted to approximately HK$1 million (2006: HK$31.5
million).

The balance sheet of the above jointly controlled entity, which
is extracted from its unaudited management accounts at 31
December 2007, is as follows:

Non-current assets FEREEE
Current assets RBEE
Current liabilities mBAaE
Group’s attributable interests AEEEGER

FERR (&)

3. Shelly San Singhal%t 4 AClear
Smart Enterprises Limited% #PA% A
LERBEEAN REBHFLIER
{3l - Singhal4t 4 1% 18 /& #5 B Clear
Smart Enterprises Limited# & 2
103,868,000/ A8 22 &) {7

4. ARAARRITESRH AL AE
B #RSunCorp Partners Limited
BRAGEAFE=D2—HMN E
KR MR BEBSunCorp
Partners Limitedffi$576,416,422%
ARABRM

REXFRBE 2SN R_TTLHF
TZA=t—H ARRTEEMGIE
BES LA R F3361RB Ttk
AR BB SRR 2 E A H A
BRIAR °

HBE LR 2 ER

R_EBEZ+HE+-_A=1+—H £A£E
IR FREE 2R 17 E 491,000,000 7T
(ZZF X 1 31,500,000/ 7T) 12 4
o

FRAEARZAERERDEROL
R-TTLE+-A=+-A2KEE
HERER  LHIMT

HK$'000
TAET
184,980
104,293
(935,921)

(646,648)
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GUARANTEES TO AFFILIATED COMPANY
(continued)

Included in the balance of current liabilities of HK$936 million
was HK$741 million due to the Group against which an
impairment loss of HK$741 million had been recognised by the
Group.

Details of the jointly controlled entity are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has no reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2007.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, a Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(@)  the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of the Company’'s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

HBE LR 2Bk (&)

g B (& 45£2936,000,000/& L4 - B
FEEN N £ B 30 IE741,000,0005 7T © A
& B 2 3tk i 5% E B E741,000,000
BT e

EBRAERRZHBEANGAMBRE
BizE18

EENEAGHZER

RERIFREMERE $’&ET§JZ,H\E
{AIf B QR ER LA EARAARA
ENEFERARMERREAES Z/\
4 e

ARRZ AR DK

R-ZEZLF+-_A=1+—H AR
WA DR T ERR 2 e

BEBRE-NAN-FREE (KE
) ARBZBABRBERAEDIK -
WETINBERT  ARENAE MR
RS - B ARESBRPIEL DK - 10
@ AREAREHIERDIKE BN
EEIHER 3%

by ZARARBEEZEREESRAL
DREREM EEEBITIRA XK
TmERK e

o

BrBERE

NN ANSIE R =g =93 Rik:3)
ERBERELTMARS - EREALQA
ARUPIRRERREZHETRMD
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 10 July 2006, the Company, Uniden Hong Kong Limited
("Uniden HK") and Uniden Corporation (“Uniden”) entered
into a subscription agreement pursuant to which the Company
has agreed to issue and allot to Uniden HK, and Uniden HK has
agreed to subscribe for, 82,000,000 shares of the Company
at an aggregate subscription price of HK$143,500,000. The
new shares represented approximately 20.01% of the enlarged
issued share capital of the Company. Uniden HK has then
become a substantial shareholder of the Company. On 26
January 2007, the shareholding of Uniden HK dropped to
9.66% as a result of a dilution following a rights issue by the
Company.

In connection with the subscription agreement, on 10 July
2006, the Company also entered into a master production
agreement and a business alliance agreement with Uniden
for the production and supply by Uniden's group companies
of telecommunication device products to the specifications
provided by the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
purchased finished goods from Uniden’s group companies.
These transactions are regarded as connected transactions
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of
the transactions are disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. The independent non-executive directors
confirm that these transactions were entered into by the Group
in the ordinary course of its business.

BYFHTERZZE

BEEHRAFE33MG ARFAZHE W
“JRﬁj#iﬂﬁ%%?fﬁﬁj'li{ﬁﬁ?ﬂ‘tlj

ZEERAE - ARARREBEULHE
ﬁﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁiAi

AEXS
R-BEXRFLATE RAA-

Uniden Hong Kong Limited ([ Uniden
HK]) K Uniden Corporation ([Uniden |)
TURBHE B ARRREM
Uniden HK# 1T R BCLE - MUniden HK[
ERB AR A 82,000,000 + 23R
F& {8 /143,500,000 7T ° TR IEAR

A B K E BT A4920.01% © Uniden

HKEBEKAARRIZFERE -R_F
T+FE-—AZ+"A ARARAHKR
% HBREEER - Uniden HKFTIG 2 IR
BTHKZE66% °

REHEER N_ZESELA
‘I’EI A2 B TR EUnidens] M A E 2K
FLEEBBRZE  AUnidenz KRB R
ARBEAEERE REEEREES
ALEES -

BE_ZZLF+-_A=1+—HILF
AEEAUndenz SEARBESR
me REBELTRAETHAS  ZF
\%E%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ?&% cBBRHZH

VR A SRR 39NN EE - B
3E¢?L?T§$EEMEZ§§%EEZK%Z
AREEBRET

ot S
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

On 17 March 2007, having considered all of the circumstances
from the commencement of the Company’s business
relationship with Uniden in the context of the business alliance
agreement and the master production agreement and, in
particular, Uniden’s breaches of those agreements, the Board
resolved to exercise, in the Company’s best interests, its
right to terminate the business alliance agreement and the
master production agreement with immediate effect because
of Uniden’s repudiatory breaches. Accordingly, on 19 March
2007, the Company gave notice to Uniden to terminate these
agreements. The Company has brought a counterclaim against
Uniden and Uniden HK in the litigation which was commenced
by the latter against the Company by the issue of a writ on
1 February 2007. The independent non-executive directors
confirm that they believe that the aforesaid termination and
proposed counterclaim to be in the best interests of the
Company. Public announcements have already been made in
respect of the litigation and termination on 6 February 2007,
20 March 2007 and 6 August 2007.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of which
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

BEXS (&)

RZET+E=A+tH KEEEX
A A EUnidenf I8 BB ARARB %
B N E B R H £Uniden
ERZEBEMS2AMAERBR &R
UnidenNETTE 4 EEGRTETFE
BRIEEMRREREER BRI EN
WEIR A ML BRFAEARA 2 &E
Flm e Al RZTZELF=A+NA -
AR RUnidenX ER FZEFHE B
HMZE - AQFEEUniden HKR -2 Z
+tF_RA—HRARAELESRLZ
FEAAF - MUniden & Uniden HKiEH R R
B-BUFRTEEHER  BEMHEEL
MR IEHERRREREFEARALZ
EEMZ -RN_EELHF-_ARH =
TS+ F-A+HEZZZEZTLFNA
NEERFRREEHEE L QM -

A B

AEEZ EEFMBEAFNER R
BEZXR  AHERENTTL -

ARAZEEMeHFMEES2RA
ARZEERE FARNRBERAIHLER
ZHBEAEFETE °
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2007.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of a significant event occurring after the balance
sheet date are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dato’ Wong Sin Just
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 April 2008

ABBREZ R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

N HAE RS E

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Suncorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 47 to 131, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements. However, because
of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion
paragraphs, we were not able to express an audit opinion.
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A

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

We have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements concerning
the possible outcome of legal proceedings involving the
Company and its three directors and a former director in
connection with a claim filed by a substantial shareholder,
Uniden Hong Kong Limited (“Uniden HK"), and its ultimate
holding company (collectively the “Uniden Group”) in relation
to the alleged misrepresentations made by the Company and its
three directors and a former director, the breach of a business
alliance agreement and a master production agreement.
The Uniden Group sought, inter alia, (i) a rescission of the
subscription agreement, pursuant to which Uniden HK acquired
82,000,000 new shares in the Company, and the consequential
return of the relevant subscription money of HK$143,500,000;
(i) damages for misrepresentation or breach of warranty; (iii)
damages for breach of the business alliance agreement and
the master production agreement; and (iv) the legal costs
of this action, plus interest. The directors of the Company
strongly refute and intend to vigorously contest Uniden Group’s
allegations, and are of the opinion, having taken legal advice,
that the action can be successfully defended. However, there is
uncertainty as to whether the above action can be successfully
defended and accordingly, there may be a potential significant
impact on the financial performance and position of the Group.

In addition, as set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group incurred a loss for the year of
approximately HK$386 million (2006: HK$350 million), and
the Group’s consolidated net liabilities as at 31 December
2007 was approximately HK$274 million (2006: HK$39
million). These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

In view of the extent and potential impact of the significant
uncertainties described above, we disclaim our opinion in these
respects for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007.
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Disclaimer of opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we do not express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as to
whether they give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 April 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
e W E K

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables from
a jointly controlled entity

Impairment losses on other assets

Share of loss of a jointly
controlled entity

Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax (expense) credit

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Dividends recognised as
distribution during the year

Loss per share

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-ZTZT+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

NOTES
Byt

g 8
HEKA

EF

HabUg A 9
HE R HRAY
THEH
FEW—FE& &N E]

BHERI R

H ek

FIEZREER 18
HEE 2 REEE 10
e S /Nl od

E1a 18
B RS A AR 11
B Al B 1R 12
FeH (ZH) #2 14
REZEE
TH AL
RRABRAFZTE A

DERRER

FRNEREBDIKLZ

s 15
BREE 16

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THET
1,116,279 1,765,156
(1,057,782)  (1,707,920)
58,497 57,236
8,692 2,950
(45,019) (48,470)
(79,908) (95,399)
(209,858) (168,868)
(102,866) (72,531)
- (3,354)
(14,737) (26,587)
(385,199) (355,023)
(665) 5,385
(385,864) (349,638)
(385,809) (349,592)
(55) (46)
(385,864) (349,638)
(HK$0.57) (HK$0.95)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEBREBX

At 31 December 2007 R=ZE+F+-A=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interest in a jointly controlled entity
Intangible assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivable with
insurance coverage

Trade and other receivables from
a jointly controlled entity

Bills receivable discounted
with full recourse

Tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Advances drawn on trade receivable
with insurance coverage

Advances drawn on bills receivable
discounted with full recourse

Amounts due to directors

Financial guarantee contracts

Tax payable

Obligations under finance leases
due within one year

Bank borrowings due within
one year
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RN
Y —EaENT
HHERR R
H fth e W 508
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BEEMRITER
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BRNEZERK

H ity e 50R
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ENESR
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NOTES
Pt o

17
18
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20

21

22

18

23

24
24

25

26

27
28

30

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
5,623 76,688

- 69,047

5,623 145,735
26,286 32,397
11,709 29,358
144,586 79,322
- 107,207
30,809 128,149
2,358 2,599
15,966 =
11,813 60,842
243,527 439,874
296,714 319,231
132,294 79,726
30,809 128,149
23,843 38,968
- 2,683

2,675 2,605
8,462 16,959
25,400 23,527
520,197 611,848
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEBREBX

At 31 December 2007 R=ZZ+F+-A=+—H

2007 2006
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
oy FERT FAT
Net current liabilities RBEEEE (276,670) (171,974)
Total assets less current liabilities #EERRBEE (271,047) (26,239)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Amounts due to minority AN
shareholders RERRIB 27 798 798
Obligations under finance R—F &I HE
leases due after one year MEBT2EH 29 1,657 12,123
2,455 12,921
Net liabilities SEFER (273,502) (39,160)
Capital and reserves RAR &
Share capital AR 31 86,059 40,974
Reserves 1 (359,670) (80,298)
Equity attributable to equity RRABREFAEA
holders of the Company FEfh RS (273,611) (39,324)
Minority interests PERE = 109 164
Total equity RS (273,502) (39,160)
The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 131 were BRBAEFBINEZEAMBRE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on ER-_ZEN\FNA-_TNHEEES

24 April 2008 and are signed on its behalf by: HEREETE YHTNEESKER

Dato’ Wong Sin Just

Director
BEREEE
EZ

£

Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton
Director
Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton

EF

“EZLEER

FENBEERDH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

R e RS

% B % &

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TT+F+-A=+—RHILFE

At 1 January 2006
RZEEAE-A-H

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations
recognised directly in the equity

NEREREDARRNZHD

EE/ERES
Loss for the year

KERBR

Total recognised income and
expense for the year

RERRR L BRARRX

Share placement
EERD

Share issue expenses
UG

Exercise of share options

fIfkRkE

At 31 December 2006
RZZEXETZA=T-H

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KAFARAEE AEE
Other Share  Accumulated
Share Share capital  Translation option profits Minority
capital premium reserve reserve reserve (losses) Sub-total interests Total
iR
k& RiveE HtEAGE RERE  ERERE (B8 Nt HERRER )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL Tin T TAL ThL AL AL AL
(Note)
(i)
32,702 37,697 14,945 (2,797) 1,618 84,741 168,906 210 169,116
- - - (451) - - (451) - (451)
- - - - - (349,592) (349,592) (46) (349,638)
- - - (451) - (349,592) (350,043) (46) (350,089)
8,200 135,300 - - - - 143,500 - 143,500
- (2.427) - - - - (2.427) - (2,427)
72 668 - - - - 740 - 740
40,974 171,238 14,945 (3,248) 1618 (264,851) (39,324) 164 (39,160)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeBEBDEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-ZTZT+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAARKHEAEE
Other Share  Accumulated
Share Share capital  Translation option profits Minority
capital premium reserve reserve reserve (losses) Sub-total interests Total
Zatiahl
L ROEE HitEARE RERE  BRERG (B#) Nt DERRER gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL Tin T TAL ThL AL AL AL
(Note)
Wiz

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations
recognised directly in the equity
RESERRIRGRNEHM
EECERER - - - (284) - - (284) - (284
Loss for the year
AEEER - - - - - (38809 (385,809) (55 (385,864)

Total recognised income and
expense for the year
RERRR ZBUARFX - - - (284) - (385809 (386,093) (55 (386,149)

Rights issue
ik 38,926 92,602 = = = = 131,528 - 131,528
Share placement
RERLH 6,146 17,823 = = = = 23,969 - 23,969
Share issue expenses
RIETRX - (6,616) - - - - (6,616) - (6,616)
Exercise of share options
fIiERRE 13 4 - - - - 37 - Efj
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payments
ARG E LA

Ry RERZ6F = = =
Release of equity-settled

share-based payments
RRIRREE TN

Ry RER 23 = = =

At 31 December 2007
R-Z2+E+-A=1-H 86,059 275,071 14,945 (3,532 2,888 (649,042) (273,611) 109 (273,502)

2,888 = 2,888 = 2,888

1
k=N
&2

1618 = = =

At 31 December 2007, the accumulated losses of the Group NZEELF+_A=1+—H £A&H

included accumulated losses of HK$44,357,000 (2006: 2 EEBEESEAAELRZA

HK$44,357,000) attributable to its jointly controlled entity. =+ E51844,357,000/8 L (ZEZ N F ¢
44,357,000/ 7T) °

Note:  Other capital reserve of the Group represents the difference W AEBzZEMENEEHEERBA

A

between the nominal value of the share capital and the %EZIKEIHQ%%EZHXZS&HME i
share premium of the subsidiaries at the date on which they BEREEEARBREMETZRK
were acquired by the Group and the nominal value of the AHEBLEHZERE -

share capital issued as consideration for the acquisition.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AR T RE WK

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-FT+F+-A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXRK
Loss before tax BRI BB 1B (385,199) (355,023)
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of financial CRERAD 2HEH
guarantee contracts (2,683) (671)
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEZHEH 20,400 30,400
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRBZ
plant and equipment e 27,118 25,925
Interest expense FERAX 14,737 26,587
Interest income FEMRA (871) (855)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BVEEZREBSE 48,647 72,531
Impairment loss on trade and other Bl —EaERRE SRR
receivables from a jointly Hofth fE W SR IE 2
controlled entity EEE 209,858 168,868
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEN B ZIR R R EEE 1,183 —
Impairment loss on property, ME - BERRBZ
plant and equipment EEE 53,036 -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME « BERE
plant and equipment BB () 2,160 (100)
Share-based payment expense PARR (R R B 2 N A X 2,888 -
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity ~ fE{E—fE& & AR ZEE - 3,354
Operating cash flows before movements Kz 2EELEFHFI 2
in working capital RERENE (8,726) (28,984)
Decrease in inventories FERD 6,111 3,948
Decrease in trade, bills and ERE SRR - BRER K
other receivables Hth FEUSERIE R, 15,486 8,021
(Increase) decrease in trade receivable ERRZEKE FERER
with insurance coverage (3g0) B (65,264) 166,813
Decrease (increase) in bills receivable MEZEEREZEK
discounted with full recourse BERERR D (38h0) 97,340 (40,657)
(Decrease) increase in trade and e E 5 IR & EL A PR £
other payables B ORd) (21,800) 99,826
Cash generated from operations REEEZRE 23,147 208,967
Interest paid BERFHE (13,524) (24,174)
Income taxes paid BN (354) (1,279)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE(BEEZRLTFHE 9,269 183,514
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FEBE T RE WK

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Advance to a jointly controlled entity
Increase in pledged bank deposits
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Expenditure on product development
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in advances drawn on
bills receivable discounted
with full recourse
Increase in advances drawn on
trade receivable with
insurance coverage
Proceeds from issue of new shares
New bank borrowings raised
Repayment of advances drawn
on bills receivable
discounted with full recourse
Repayment of advances drawn
on trade receivable
with insurance coverage
Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of obligations under
finance leases
(Repayment to) advances from directors
Expenses on issue of shares
Interest paid for finance leases

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #EHZE—

REXRK
BT —HAEQT
BERRITESIE N
BEME  BEER
EWFIE
EmAEX
HENE - BE &R
IS 50R

REXKEBAZ
REFE

BMERK
BXMEEmERE
(N EES
BTEN
AL T
EHENLZ
HRIE N
BT 2 RIS SUR
FrE& 2 FiRITER
EEREHEHERE
RWRRR 15 2 25K

BEEXERR
BB SRR
ZER

BBIRITER

EEMEREBT

F%

(fB8) EF 287
BHETRX

MRMERETH2FE

_\_‘N

REXBELE (BF)
ZHEFHR

]

EELET A=+ —HIEFE

.z

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
(102,651) (127,655)
(15,966) =
(10,997) (22,347)
871 855
- (50,609)

- 1,191
(128,743) (198,565)
487,701 606,827
300,828 792,616
155,534 144,240
127,275 419,527
(585,041) (566,170)
(248,260) (931,808)
(125,402) (506,041)
(19,156) (19,801)
(15,125) 38,968
(6,616) (2,427)
(1,213) (2,413)
70,525 (26,482)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AR EMNERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-FT+F+-A=+—HILFE

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

ReRREEHERE
B FE

HNEEREH

E/
ge

RENzRERAE
%E|AE

REZEZRERAE
ZERE
RITERLIRS

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET
(48,949) (41,533)
(80) (552)
60,842 102,927
11,813 60,842
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ®w R KE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and
it also provides corporate management services. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design and sales
of telephone and related products.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars (“USD"). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") for the
convenience of the shareholders, as the Company is listed
in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group in light of its net liabilities
of approximately HK$274 million at 31 December 2007
and the loss of approximately HK$386 million reported
for the current year. The directors of the Company are
also taking active steps to improve the liquidity position
of the Group. These steps include (i) raising a gross cash
proceeds of approximately HK$67,900,000 through
an issuance of convertible notes for a total of 679
million new shares at HK$0.1 per convertible share; (ii)
negotiating with major customers to accelerate the pace
of launching new products; (i) implementing stringent
cost control measures; (iv) requesting suppliers to extend
their payment terms to strengthen its cash flow position.
Provided that these measures can successfully improve the
liquidity position of the Group, the directors are satisfied
that the Group will be able to continue to operate with
no significant financial difficulties. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis.

—REH

ARBREBRETMAL 2 X
RERRQF ERNEREHAR
SARBRAR ([BRAT]) £ - K
ARZEMMRER R T BEE A
WA BN AF R AR ERHRE

ARB—REREZEBR AR - MR
HEREERSE - AMBARTE
REEFMMBBER R RHEE
EV

ARBZNEEERET - ERA
ARERBLT  ATEKRERSZ
NG RUBERRABTE® -

WAMBRRCEE

EREFAVBRERE  EREASE
BR-_ZE+F+-_A=+—HZ
B EFEA A274,000,00058 7T KA
FEHRH 2B EL A386,000,000
B ARAREEEERAEEY
BERBESMN - RABESIT
ERRERLBREAEE R
BEEMN ZEFXRBE)EB
BOUBRER (WRERERKRK
n01B T % A4S $£679,000,000
BEBRO) EERERELED
67,900,000 7T : (N F EE P
BMRELFER K (IDE
HEBRAR B A PE IR 1 (v) BSR4t e
EEREM TR - AN AL E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

’é';"/'h_-l_\/_\

B %5 %R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new standard, amendment and
interpretations (the “new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s financial
year beginning 1 January 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) = INT 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

HK(IFRIC) - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - INT 10 Interim Financial Reporting

and Impairment

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current
or prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is
required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively.
Certain information presented in the prior year under
the requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and
the relevant comparative information based on the
requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has
been presented for the first time in the current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

3.

BREHREBT2EEMR
B & %A

RAFEE  AEEERERNATH
EREGELG ([BEGEIQ
AD%%Z%EﬁJ&M E& %
wE((HABMBREER]) - Z
FRANINAEE_TZLF— A
—HﬁﬁZMﬁEEE&
B EN ALBE
F15 (EE7T)
ERMBREEAETR  ERIACEE
Fh(ERBRESRE  RBEERCHEN
Z89)-2EETH BN RERK
£«< mZﬁMﬁz;&ij
ERE]IE
EE(ARABRSR BRUMHREEN
iéé)‘%%wi ik ]
Fh(ERMREERE  BRARNAIA
REE)-RER
FE(ARABRERE  PHUERER
ZEg)-2EE10% HfE
ER#MEEMBEREENH AR
k2R AEFTHAE%ANS ﬂ%ﬁ
MEELVBARLBEEATE

W AEL AT R

AEBEEBPERABBSHENSE
158 (B 1ER]) RBE B UK RE £
FIR - AFREBEBBSHENE
NHKEER2ETERCLEME - M
AFEEERBERSGERNE
R (EIER]) RBBH B mE &L E
THRZFTELMEBLERER -

REBVERAERAUTEBMHE
WA ERZ AT RAEIEET 2 £ R 5
EAE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ®w R KE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements'

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combination?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments'

HK(IFRIC) = INT 1 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions?®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements’

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction*

BEHREER (7

%‘/’é M‘EEJ%

2% (EE7)
BRI EN

F27% (8E7])
ERMBERSEN
EvAHESY)
BRHEREEN
#3% (EE)
BRMBREENZ0H

Bk (ERMRAERE

ZEg)-2RENR

Bk (ERMRAERE

B8)-RBENN
B (BRIKRELRE
5%)-REE 3%
B BRIBRERE

B
z
(8
z
Bk
282)-2EEUR

3. EFH%%JT&,@{I”TZ@%EJJ

FBRRLZH
R

R R BER
GBI Rt #
$HAmm

SENY

BRUBREE
£l -5ERE
BRiz 5
R TEL

(3T HE R

genElz
195 - A&
BELRA

SEEFRE
km#z#E
B

TR ZEEAF A -HANURR

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March
2007

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008

A2 FEHEER

RZZFZNFLA-BHUKH

f 2 FEHRE LR

RIBZLF=A—BHIURF

1B FRBREER

RZZBZENF-HA—-HAHUEH

f 2 FEHE LR

RZZFZENFLA-BHUEKH

f 2 FE IR LR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control, which will be
accounted for as equity transactions.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

3.

BREHREBT2EEMR
B S8 (&)

EXBAMCRERRR-ZTN
FrA-BRZRABZEREF
HEHERG R 2K QB
EBeMcetRENEAEER
REMBRYMBHRE LA F3R (K
B MXBNTE - E/DANH
BRAICHAREHIEEHR
AREEGIE ERERRES
SHRENARERINBAETE
RISE275% (B RT) PR 8 X AR 4
RHNE °

ARAEERHEBEMI RE
FERSRES T HAREREA
EHABRARBREATE -

FTESHHE

MTXEIN 2 GFTBRAEE - K
SEVBRREREELKAEE
RR EETERIARATER

=
= °

AEEA M BEHRRTIIZBRE R ST AD
RERMZEEMBRELEAR
Blolbdh REAMBHRRBER
BHARZMEBERDAIE S LR
RIRBBARGIER ZERRKE
E -

GARE
TREMBBRRBERRARAEAR
AIFTE I E e (M B AR 2 B 15
W& MARABREH X (A
CUHBREERE  emBEHEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

’é';"/'h_-l_\/_\

B %5 %R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE

4.

SEELETCAST-ALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals
or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’'s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses
is recognised.

4,

FESEER @)
M BE KRB (&)
EEYE BERREBERLERK
ﬂ%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁ
ESRBEWNABIEECEER &
ETE%WW Bz fal e 2k Bk s
BORIHERSRERERERA
BZZB) B ATBRAEES
EZEBZHGAWER -

SENAESRKYBY AR A
§Etﬂﬂk BUAEEELHZME
B E B RS LR E IR o

U>

ERRlCKRE BERBEBEHOR
%$ﬁgu£ﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi
ZREDRE RAERAZRE
DREAYTERAEEFTHZA S
ARZEBEFEURBREDELS
B BRI 858 E B B R AR
REERABRAIIR - WAKEY

—BEDNRIMAEZEBERERS
BREZAREARIMEREZD  AIA
ERREFELIEREDEZE-—FH
B-EEAXAKEBBALALIBE

/

e

BRRRZEE DA X T FHIER -
THENEEEETRBELRRE
f& o

HMEEBEREREBRZAERA

ETRG AERZABREAR
BRZAE DR ST AME -
HERMABERBEEAMEREED
BRER  AI/AZERIERE -

60

Suncorp Technologies Limited

2007 Annual Report




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ®w R KE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets - research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on
a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories, which represent goods held for sale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise only loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest method is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade, bills and other receivables, trade
receivable with insurance coverage, trade and other
receivables from a jointly controlled entity, bills receivable
discounted with full recourse, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

e default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade,
bills and other receivables, trade receivable with insurance
coverage, trade and other receivables from a jointly
controlled entity and bills receivable discounted with full
recourse, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on these receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade, bills and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade, bills and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
advances drawn on trade receivable with insurance
coverage and advances drawn on bills receivable
discounted with full recourse, amounts due to directors,
financial guarantee contracts, obligations under finance
leases and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire, or the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset'’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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RE BB ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods
are delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement scheme which are defined
contribution schemes, are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs (continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (“foreign currencies”)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group before
7 November 2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in the consolidated income statement in
respect of the value of options granted. Upon the exercise
of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value
of the shares, and the excess if the exercise price per
share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded
as share premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled
prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.

Share options granted to employees of the Group after 7
November 2002 and vested after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. The following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Going concern and liquidity

The Group has consolidated net liabilities of approximately
HK$274 million at 31 December 2007 and loss of
approximately HK$386 million for the year then ended
indicating the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The directors are taking
active steps to improve the liquidity position of the
Group and details are set out in note 2. Subsequent to
31 December 2007, the Group raised gross proceeds of
HK$67.9 million through an issuance of convertible notes
for a total of 679 million new shares at HK$0.1 per share.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. Should the issue of convertible
notes and other measures fail to improve the liquidity
position of the Group and the Group is unable to continue
in business as a going concern, adjustments would have
to be made to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets
of the Group to their recoverable amounts and to provide
for further liabilities which might arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 29 and
30, equity reserves attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and various
reserves and accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets tRMEE
Loans and receivables BN EY A

(including cash and cash
equivalents)

TRAE
B #HRA

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

6.

(BEReRREFEER)

EXERER

AEEERER WRAREN L
PREREES YRR
B RE 2 T - RAREF N
1B E 2 B8 o B F AR
AEE Y BREBARTE -

ARECEARBERSEH (B
Pt 29 K30 E 2 R E) R AR
ARARSAEANRGEEEZHE (B
BEETRARTRAERELRTE
B) -

ARAEFE¥FRABARE
iéﬁﬁP ARBEEERETHAMA

BRERZHARR - AR E
$ETF%$ZL B BBRITHBD

RETHEKERBRRBEAREEZ
o
tRMIA

(a) eI AZER

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT
209,023 394,176
511,707 611,210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
trade, bills and other receivables, trade receivable
with insurance coverage, trade and other receivables
from a jointly controlled entity, bills receivable
discounted with full recourse, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances, trade and other payables, advances
drawn on trade receivable with insurance coverage,
advances drawn on bills receivable discounted with
full recourse, amounts due to directors, financial
guarantee contracts, obligations under finance
leases, bank borrowings and amounts due to
minority shareholders. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to market risk arising from changes in

foreign exchange rates.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as

follows:

7. ERIA M)
(b) MBEKREERZERBEK

AREZIBEMTIABTRE
WE SRS BRERREAM
BKFE EERRZEKES
Bk BR—HEAELRAES
BRMEMERFE HE2
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued) (&)
Market risk (continued) miZ Rk (&)
(i)  Currency risk (continued) iy EBER(E)
Liabilities Assets
&8f& 5E
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FAT FTET TAT
HKD BT 23,957 83,090 4,253 117,772
British Pound (“GBP") HgE 3,458 2,890 910 68
Euro ("EUR") [ 847 377 322 338
usb e - - 12 712
Renminbi (“RMB") AR - - - 20
Sensitivity analysis BB
As USD is pegged with HKD, the Group's RRBITEETEN - K
currency risk in relation to the monetary assets/ SEMEE L/(/%EJTEZT

liabilities denominated in HKD is expected to be
minimal.

The Group is mainly exposed to the GBP, EUR
and RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in USD against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. On this basis, there will
be a decrease in loss where USD strengthen 5%
against the relevant currency, and vice versa.

7. ERIA M)
(b) HHEREEBERRER

BEE/ABRNAREY
RBRER -

AREBTRmERE EX??E
MARETSE SRR

TRFHIETALBEINE
BEZ5% LT R THRE AR
EEZFE - S%REER
HAEREBERIMNEE
BRRACHREER
RRTEEBHIBER
EREBRAREHIACE
PTG - BMRE DI E
BRENIINETEMREE
ZE¥IEE  WHRINEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

GBP Impact
REyE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TiEn
Decrease (increase) in loss ~ E5igD (1) 127 141(1)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on GBP receivables and
payables at the year end date.

This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on EUR receivables and
payables at the year end date.

This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on RMB receivables at the year
end date.

7. €@IA @

(b) HHEREEBERRER

(%)

15 Bk ()
() E%ERGE)
BRI ()

EUR Impact

BELRE
2007
HK$000
Tér

26

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

2006
HK'000
TR

i) -

RMB Impact
IN:tih 7 |
2007
HK$'000
TEn

2006
HK'000
T

(1)

HEBRERNFER
R 32 85 e WK 0R B B
NRORMES 2 Bk -

LEERENFEH
R B 7 B W k0B % e
NRRMEL 2B °

LEBERENFEEH
A AR YRR M
EL R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances, advances drawn on trade receivable
with insurance coverage, advances drawn on
bills receivable discounted with full recourse,
obligations under finance leases and bank
borrowings (see notes 24, 26, 29 and 30 for
details of bank balances, advances drawn
on trade receivable with insurance coverage,
advances drawn on bills receivable discounted
with full recourse, obligations under finance
leases and bank borrowings). It is the Group's
policy to keep its bank balances and borrowings
at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the
fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of LIBOR arising
from the Group’s USD bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to variable
interest rate of bank borrowings at the balance
sheet date. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the balance
sheet date was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease in LIBOR is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

7. ERIA M)
(b) HHEREEBERRER

(%)

15 Bk ()

(ii)

R & [l fez

AEBERAFERTHE
#®oBEIERRIERE
R BR BIHWE
FHEREZENRERERE
BB MEHEEET
JEBRBTEE (AH
RITEH BIXEREZ
EKREZERIBH &
THEE2HBEREZER
%E%FZQ% mEM
EETZEBRRITEE
Z.ﬁli B2 HME24
26 29/%30) MEH &
MAERR ANEE K
”Eiﬁﬁﬁ ERREE
\w@ﬁhw+§’ﬂﬁ
FEMERRE

FEEESHAER SR
BETES 2 FIEER -
EAKENRBES AR
BB -

AEBE RS RHEME

o TREFRAEEDN

%E%Efﬂ%fé??iﬂﬁ%(
TTRIZEFERIRE

AT ZBREDTHIRE
REZBEH 2FBRTT
EEMETE - MBS
KeERENEHER ZKE
BEABeHEEFARR
BE-SEANFRNERE
& & WA = 3 e R K A
FURTTRIZE M B 2 50E 2
gEmgoRd  KRERTERE
BHMEESEIBRL A
IRz BT o

“ERLEEFER

FERNBEERDH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

’é';"/'h_-l_\/_\

B % R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If LIBOR interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$854,000
(2006: increase/decrease by HK$998,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2007, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
of financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 37.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 40%
and 77% of the total trade receivable was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers within the business segment, respectively.

7. ERIA M)
(b) HHEREEBERRER
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

7. ERIA M)
(b) HHEREEBERRER

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

In order to manage its credit risk, management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. An impairment
loss of approximately HK$209,858,000 (2006:
HK$168,868,000) in respect of the amount due from
a jointly controlled entity was recognised by the
Group for the year. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
managed.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank and other borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The consolidated net liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2007 was approximately HK$274 million.
The directors of the Company are also taking active
steps to improve the liquidity position of the Group.
These steps include (i) raising a gross cash proceeds
of approximately HK$67,900,000 through an issuance
of convertible notes for a total of 679 million
new shares at HK$0.1 per convertible share; (ii)
negotiating with major customers to accelerate the
pace of launching new products; (iii) implementing
stringent cost control measures; (iv) requesting
suppliers to extend their payment terms to strengthen
its cash flow position. Provided that these measures
can successfully improve the liquidity position of the
Group, the directors are satisfied that the Group will
be able to continue to operate with no significant
financial difficulties.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

7. ERIA M)
(b) HHEREEBERRER

(&)

RBESRER (&)
AEBER-_ZTLE+=A
ST-BIZHEEREFENA
274,000,000/ 7T ° N A A] &
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. €E®MIAE
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) B BERBEEEERBX
policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRER (B)
Carrying
amount
at 31
Weighted Total  December
average undis- 2007
effective counted R=E5+E
interest rate  Less than 13 3 months 1to cash flows tZA

MEFY  1month  months tofyear  3years AHEEE =1-A
ERAE OMER  123ER EAEIE  1E3%F  R#E  <KEE
%  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tén THEx TR TR TR TEn

2007 ZRRLE
Non-derivative financial {74 &/

liabilities BE
Trade and other payables  ERZSEHR

it ERFR - 71859 10,585 - - 288444 288,444

Advances drawn on trade ~ BXERRFEN

receivable with BAER

insurance coverage LB 73 55691 58002 28,258 - 14951 132,29
Advances drawn on BxlEZE

bills receivable BRELE

discounted with WHRZR

full recourse LB 13 18,276 14,458 32 - 33,058 30,809
Amounts due to S

directors - 23,843 - - - 23,843 23,843
Obligations under BAHERT

finance leases LB 6 1,007 2,114 5,578 1697 10486 10,119
Bank loans - variable RTER-2E 735 17,04 10,243 - - 2267 25400
Amounts due to ERDRR

minority shareholders b - 798 - - - 798 798

394,588 95,402 34,160 1,697 525847 511,707
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

2006 it 7%

Non-derivative financial #{T42BEE
liabilities

Trade and other payables  ERZZEHR

EthERARE

Advances drawn on trade BB RRMEM
receivable with BAEH
insurance coverage ba:i5 s

Advances drawn on BxliE2E
bills receivable BEEL
discounted with FElEER
ful recourse ZEIBR

Amounts due to ERESTE
directors

Financial quarantee SRERSY
contracts

Obligations under MEREET
finance leases LE%

Bank loans - variable RITER -8

Amounts due to ERDERR

minority shareholders  30&

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
ETH
ULk
%

6.6

6.6

5.93
6.5

7. ERIA M)
(b) HHEREEBERRER

(%)

REBE SRR (&)

Carrying

amount

at 31

Total  December

undis- 2006

counted RZEENF

Less than 13 3months Tto  cash flows 124
Tmonth  months tolyear  3years AHEEE Zt-H
SMER  1Z3R 3EREIF 123F neR  REE
HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Tir T Tin Tir Tin Tin
308,277 - - - 308,277 308,277
29,217 55,771 - - 84,988 79,726
103,598 28,647 4362 - 136,607 128,149
38,968 - - - 38,968 38,968
2,683 - - - 2,683 2,683
2,118 3915 12,201 12,521 30,755 29,082
832 24,224 - - 25,056 23,527

798 - - - 798 798
486,491 112,557 16,563 12,521 628132 611,210
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. €E®MIAE
(c) Fair value () A¥E
The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and REBveoREERESRERE
financial liabilities are determined in accordance ZRFEDBELEBRMA LT
with generally accepted pricing models based on BEX RERBESRDOM
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates HARAEEEEEMSER 5
from observable current market transactions. The FIGERIEXET -EFR
directors consider that the carrying amounts of these BEEEVBIMENIED #H
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded KARH I eHEERERE
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial EREENEERERTEE-

statements approximate their fair values.

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. 7¥&HR
Revenue represents the gross amounts received and WaEFRAEAEBRINATFHEE
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside EmRRE R ITH % BT U ER K FE Uk
customers, less returns and allowances, during the year. B2 FRIB4R%E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEEH®@
Geographical segments by location of customers with BHE_TTLF+-A=+—HLt
reference to the location of final users of the telephone FEEBHWESE (BEPHE
and related equipment for the year ended 31 December WEE S WELETZRBBR
2007 are set out below: BREAP ZMER) 30T :
Central
and
Eastern
Western Europe Asia
Europe P Pacific Others Total
il RE® TAE Hitr st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TER TER T
REVENUE g 1,008,136 16,983 66,988 24,172 1,116,279
RESULTS £ |
Segment results ECES 1,725 480 633 648 3,486
Unallocated income ‘AR ZBA 8,692
Unallocated expenses BORZFAX (382,640)
Finance costs AR (14,737)
Loss before tax R ATE R (385,199)
Income tax expense FERRX (665)
Loss for the year KEEER (385,864)
CONSOLIDATED RREESER
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 109,383 1,929 60,855 1,146 173,313
Unallocated assets BN ZEE 75,837
249,150
LIABILITIES af
Unallocated liabilities BN BE 522,652
OTHER INFORMATION ~ Hfi&#
Impairment loss on trade ~ fE—FEAE AF
and other receivables BRI R EA
from a jointly controlled  FEUGRIB Z R (E
entity B8 - - 209,858 - 209,858
Impairment loss on JEE BHRR L
trade receivables REEE - - 1,183 - 1,183
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. PEEN @
Geographical segments by location of customers with BHE_TEREF+A=+—HLt

EE*Z%W@E“%H (BREFPME
wHEn YKL EEFREAR

reference to the location of final users of the telephone
and related equipment for the year ended 31 December

2006 are set out below:

1%%%%%)52}5)?1{1@) o

Central
and
Eastern
Western Europe Asia
Europe R Pacific Others Total
P ¢ RER TAR Hit @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
REVENUE g 1,487,803 89,904 151,790 35,659 1,765,156
RESULTS ES
Segment results GECE L 5,243 1,019 375 365 7,002
Unallocated income BB 2B 2,950
Unallocated expenses BHRZFAX (335,034)
Share of loss of a jointly ~ JEfE—FHAE AT
controlled entity ZIEE (3,354)
Finance costs BT R A (26,587)
Loss before tax BRR A& 1B (355,023)
Income tax credit FiEHiES 5,385
Loss for the year AEEER (349,638)
CONSOLIDATED REEERER
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets NEEE 163,948 3,374 55,699 2,433 225,454
Unallocated assets BORCEE 360,155
585,609
LIABILITIES =L
Unallocated liabilities BORCEBE 624,769
OTHER INFORMATION Hit &R
Impairment loss on trade B —FAE AR
and other receivables BT LEM
from a jointly controlled  FEWFIEZRE
entity E# - - 168,868 - 168,868
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

All of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results
were derived from the design and sale of telephones and
related equipment. Accordingly, no business segment
analysis is presented for the Group.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, more than 90%
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Group
are located in Hong Kong. Accordingly, an analysis
of the carrying amount of segment assets and capital
expenditure, analysed by the geographical area in which
the assets and liabilities located are not presented.

9. OTHER INCOME

Amortisation of financial SRIERG A 2 #H
guarantee contracts

Exchange gain BEE 3, W5

Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BERE&H
plant and equipment Z W

Interest income LS A

Sundry income FETRKA

Included in sundry income is an amount of HK$5,108,000
(2006: Nil) in respect of the reversal of liabilities of certain
subsidiaries upon their deregistration.

PEER @
EREERARZEERERE

Rt RHEBREREBRE - Bt
AEEYEEREBDBON -

RIBEZ+ER_TTF+_A
E+—H A& EBBI0% 2 7] H#
REERBEHURES - Bt -
Iﬂ&§3&ﬁ1%EﬂE£W“

HEERBEARIEEEDN

HA A
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
2,683 671
- 971
- 100
871 855

5,138 353

8,692 2,950

MBWATBERE TH B
BWSH 3T fift 1% B [ i%@ﬁz:&f
5,108,000 T (ZSF R F &) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ERERKE

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON OTHER ASSETS

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment (note 17)

Impairment loss on intangible
assets (note 19)

Impairment loss on trade
receivable (note 21)

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:

- bank and other borrowings
wholly repayable within
five years

— finance leases

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

2007
HK$'000
FEx
ME - BERREZ
REEE (#it17) 53,036
B EE 2 REES
(K1:%19) 48,647
e E 5 BR X 2 R EE1E
(K1:%21) 1,183
102,866
1. R A&
2007
HK$'000
FTHT
AT EEZFS
- BRREERNEH
BEZHETR
HipEE 13,524
—mEHE 1,213

14,737

10. HttEE 2 REBE

2006
HK$'000
TR

72,531

72,531

2006
HK$'000
THT

24,174
2,413

26,587

“ERLEEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

12.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Product development expenditure,

including staff costs capitalised
referred to below
Less: Amount capitalised

Directors’ emoluments (note 13)

Other staff costs

Share based payment of other
employees

Total employee benefits expense

Less: Amount capitalised in
product development
expenditure

Total employee benefits expense
charged to consolidated
income statement

Amortisation of intangible assets
(Included in administrative
expenses)

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange losses (gains) [E R &R (W) F58

BREAIEBRE R GEA)

oI5

EmAETLH 821
Tt 2 AL
BT

o A i N e -

EZME (Wet13)
Hith & TR
Hio g8 2 ARD 4
2 [I3K

& e F R
W EmAE 2
- Ndkc:

Rira WERMER 2

EE R AE

B EE 2 #H
(FFATTRER)

2 G
FERAER /X

WE - BB K&k
ZITE
HENE - BE &R
ZEE (W)

12. RELAIE B

2007
HK$'000
TR

11,074

11,074

6,223
21,925

2,558

30,706

30,706

20,400
1,855

1,057,782

27,118

2,160
434

2006
HK$'000
TAT

62,910
(50,609)

12,301

10,287
42,261

52,548

(15,310)

37,238

30,400
1,744

1,707,920

25,925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 13.EEZkEEME

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 (2006: ENSENFIE(ZETRE 7
7) directors were as follows: Z)EEZAZHEHT
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ESH &
Year ended 31 December 2007 BE-_ZZtF+-A=1+-—
ALEFEE
Peter  Malcolm  Leung Mak  Cheung  Wong Hui ~ Chan Edward

Francis Stephen  Shek  Chee Chi Sin - KaWah ~ Kam  ThomasHungerford  Stanley

Amour  Jacobs-  Kong Bun Wai Just  Ronnie Tim Chia Milward- ~ Chan  Total

EE patn BB BHE REE ERR  SZE ORSR En¥  oher RER &3
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

Tér TEn TEz Thn TEx TEr TEn TEz THEn TEr  TEn  TEn

Fees; e
Brecutive directors #1122 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Independent BT
no-executive EH
directors - - - 10 - - 17 12 9 m 80 478
- - - 10 - - 1 12 9 m 80 478
Other emoluments: M :
Beatiedrecos  Hf7ES
-slariesand other  —E&R
benefits Efrfail 500 2,660 540 48 1132 9 - - - - - 5353
- reffement beneft ~ ~&IFEF
scheme AR
contribution 1 12 1 1 1 1 - - - - - 62
- share-based -HiklhE
payments ERf
eApeNses F2B% - - - - - - - - - -
512 2,672 552 440 1474 95 - - - - - 5,45
Total emoluments e S0 261 5 40 141 % 1 1 2 m 80 6
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE-TZT+F+-A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2006

13.EEREEME @)

(a) XM= (5
BE-STREFT=-A=1-

HIEEE
Peter  Malcolm  Leung Mak Edward
Francis ~ Stephen Shek Chee  Thomas Hungerford  Stanley
Amour  Jacobs- Kong Bun Chia  Milward- Chan Total
BiE  paton  2HX KHE  EnF  Oer BAB h
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Thr TErn TExr ThExn TErn  TEAr  TExn  TErn
Fees: Be:
Executive directors H1EZ - - - - - - - -
Independent BUTES
non-executive directors - - - - 90 90 90 210
. - . R N )
Other emoluments: At
Executive directors H1EZ
- salaries and other -HeREf
benefits &l 1,289 3,810 2,340 2,530 - - - 9,969
- retirement benefit —RIREHN
scheme contribution HES 12 12 12 12 - - - 48
1,301 3,822 2,352 2,542 - - - 10,017
Total emoluments &M 1,301 3,822 2,352 2,542 90 90 90 10,287

Wt - RBE_EE F+=A
“+—HBLEE EBHE
B R B E H £1386,0007%
TZEe - FHTER
MEBRERN HEE
EREBEE_ZTTLF T
A=+—BLEEEREF

AN
o

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2006, Peter Francis
Amour agreed to waive his salaries by approximately
HK$386,000. The above figure has already reflected
the waive. No directors waived any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2007.
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RE BB ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 1B.EBEREEME @)

(continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments EREEREESME 2 AL
in the Group, two (2006: four) were directors of the EHhORG (ZEZNFE M
Company whose emoluments are included in the Z)BARRIZES HME
disclosure in the paragraph above. The emoluments R LB EZER D o
of the remaining three (2006: one) individual were as EBp=R2(CZEREFE: —F)

follows: ATZHMEWT :
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Salaries and other benefits  #H& REAEF 3,993 2,372

Retirement benefit scheme — EREFFHEI

contribution 36 10
4,029 2,382

Their emoluments were RELMeBENT
within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 to 1,000,001/ 8L E
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000/8 7T 3 -

HK$2,000,001 to 2,000,00187cE
HK$2,500,000 2,500,000/ 7T - 1
During the year ended 31 December 2007, two of the REZ-_ZZ+F+_-_H=+—8H
five highest paid individuals were paid an amount of LFE AERSFALTZ_EX
HK$614,000 (2006: HK$300,000), excluding salaries and £ #614,0008 T (ZTZRF
other benefits, as compensation for loss of office. 300,000/ 7w) TR EFHE REME

Mo AERBERABE

“EZLEER FRMKARAAF |91




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWRERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 14. FiIBHXH (E&)

The charge (credit) comprises:

Overseas income tax for the year ~ ANEZBINTER

Deferred taxation credit (note 33) EIEFRIEE R (f1:£33)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the year. Overseas income
tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") promulgated the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “Tax Law"”) by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of
the Tax Law. The Tax Law and Implementation Regulations
enact the tax rate of 25% for the Company’s subsidiary in
the PRC from 1 January 2008.

BB () B

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR
665 770

- (6,155)

665 (5,385)

EAMNERBEBEFE 2t ER
Bi s R IR Bt B17.5%5H & < BN
BRIRSAEERZRITR R
;%:o

RZZEE+F=A+ B FEA
REMBE((HE])BREPRHEES
FIFRMHBECEMBR = ([H
BMED) RZTEELF+ZARN
B PR BATEENER
G0l e HBAERBERKEHH-_ZZ
NE—A—BERERRBRPEHE
B ARMBELRAB25% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued)

The income tax expense (credit) can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated income statement as

14. FRBEH 3t (K R) (#)

BRI (Ee) HER
HHW%EZﬂ%MT-

slRER

15.

follows:

Loss before tax BRiRIER

Tax at the domestic income tax BTG HE17.5%
rate of 17.5% S ZHIE

Tax effect on share of loss of a i —RaE R RER
jointly controlled entity IR E

Tax effect of expenses not TERS LR RER 2
deductible for tax purpose THHBEE

Tax effect of income not taxable R ETEFH 2
for tax purpose WAz BB E

Utilisation of tax losses previously B RTEIARRER 2
not recognised HIEEE

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Effect of different tax rates of
overseas subsidiaries

Income tax expense (credit)

DIVIDENDS

AERZHIEEEZ
MERE
BB AR T RABE
P

Ffsdisdh (%)

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended

31 December 2007 and 2006.

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
(385,199) (355,023)
(67,410) (62,129)
- 587
72,313 53,683
(3.374) (3,782)
(1,563) (3,090)
3,896 11,366
(3,197) (2,020)
665 (5,385)

15. R &

HE_ZTZLER-_TERE+ -
A=+ ALFEIERNHER

RS

“ERLEEFER
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REMBWRERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE

The loss per share is calculated based on the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$385,809,000 (2006: HK$349,592,000) and on
the weighted average number of 677,752,455 (2006:
369,185,691) shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of calculating basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 have been
retrospectively adjusted for the effect of the rights issue
completed in the current year.

Diluted loss per share is not presented as the exercise of
the outstanding share options of the Company would
result in a decrease in loss per share.

16. BREE

TREBEEBRBEARARARE
B AL 2 E518385,809,000/
T (ZZEZNF 349,592,000/
TT) REREBEITRMD 2 MEFEH
21677,752,455 (Z 2 E < F ¢
369,185,691% ) 5+ & o

BE_ZZLFR-_ZTTRNF+=
A=+—BLEFERNUFESRE
AEBzLTARMNETSE  E5
REAEETK 2 ERZFZEEDE
P .

B TT (28 1 B ff R 17 58 8 PO 7S
BHERERRD  HUIRE 2R
BREEESR -
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RE BB ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% -BERRE

Furniture, Telephone

Leasehold  fixtures and

improve- and computer

Plant and ments equipment  systems Motor

machinery g B BER  vehicles Total
BERKE NXEL RERRE EREAR "E ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TExr TEx TExr  TER  TEn

cosT KA

At 1 January 2006 RZZE E-HA-H 87,770 269 5,390 7,246 2,741 103,416
Currency realignment EREE - - 54 177 102 333
Additions RE 24,000 - 1,341 530 - 25871
Disposals k3 (1,451) - (141) (7) - (1,599
At 31 December 2006 RZFEAE+-A=+-H 110,319 269 6,644 7,946 2,843 128,021
Currency realignment GRER - - 35 114 46 195
Additions NE 6,429 - 3,513 309 939 11,190
Disposals k3 - (500 (5507)  (2,99) - (8,553)
At 31 December 2007 R-EZLE+-R=+-H 116,748 219 4,685 5,373 3,828 130,853

DEPRECIATION AND TEERHE

AMORTISATION

At 1 January 2006 RZZE E-A-A 15,868 135 3,149 5,041 1,491 25,684
Currency realignment L] - - 28 143 61 232
Provided for the year AERRE 22,457 40 2,423 478 527 25925
Eliminated on disposals &R H## (433) - (72) (3) = (508)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEAF+-A=+-8B 37,89 175 5,528 5,659 2,079 51,333
Currency realignment L] - - 17 87 32 136
Provided for the year AEERE 25,820 33 281 504 480 27,118
Impairment loss recognised & BB EEE 53,036 - - - - 53,03
Eliminated on disposals ~ HEB - (19 (4,831  (1,543) - (6,393
At 31 December 2007 RZEZtE+-A=+-H 116748 189 995 4,707 2,591 125,230
CARRYING VALUES RAEE

At 31 December 2007 RZFZLETZA=1-A - 30 3,690 666 1,237 5,623
At 31 December 2006 RIZERETA=T-B 72427 94 1,116 2,287 764 76,688

“ERLEEFER FEMAKERAA |95




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

’é';"/'h_-l_\/_\

B % R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

20% - 30%

Over the shorter of
the term of the
relevant lease
or 15%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%

Telephone and computer systems 30%

Motor vehicles 20% - 30%

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

In view of the operating loss incurred by the Group during
the year, the directors conducted a review of the Group's
plant and machinery and determined that the recoverable
amount of certain plant and equipment is less than its
carrying value and an impairment loss of HK$53,036,000
was recognised by the Group for the year.

The recoverable amount of these plant and equipment
is determined on the basis of a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on the
most recent financial budgets approved by management
for next year and extrapolates cash flows for the following
four years based on zero growth rate. The rates used to
discount the forecast cash flows for is 12% per annum.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are
those regarding the discount rate and expected changes
in selling prices and direct costs during the period.
Management estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks associated with it. Changes in
selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future charges in the market.

At 31 December 2006, the net book value of plant
and machinery included an amount of HK$46,929,000
in respect of assets held under finance leases. At 31
December 2007, plant and machinery held under finance
leases carried no net book value due to the impairment
loss recognised by the Group for the year.

17. 9% - BERRE @

LM% - BERKRERBEZEAT
FRUBRETERE

BB Kt 25 20%Z30%

MEMEEE EBEBHES
H15%2
LS SE

B EERRE  15%
EaENEMESR 30%
R 20%%E30%

ERANEBRNFREE %%%E’
EERGAEBCHE Ri#s

EEETHRERR ﬁZT%@iﬁ
REFEEAR HASERAF
[& #E R R E E51853,036,0008 7T °

L E RS Rk E 2 U E 2 5 R IA
EREEMBEEERE - Xt BAER
BIRERER - mELTREMAE
ENERBRRFRB 2 HKIHE
BRE URETERIEERKE
MEZRERE - BRREAR
EMZNEREF12% - EREBE
AREECIERRA/BHUERRIN
REBRERKMARNBA AR
- ERENUIRKRAAMTEHE
B eREEZFEAREERRD

MAMEREHYEBRR - EBRER
W$zmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁrm&ﬁ
BRI IG IR 2 &

RZEBEZERF+ZA=FT—H" 'K
Ehk#xEEEFERLEERE
MEIE T AT & &= A 46,929,000
%m RZZEE+LF+-_A=+—

CERBEREETAERE kK
%%LAEEEE@TEEIJEE FARANE

ERNFEAERRERSE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

18. INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

Cost of unlisted investment
Deemed contribution upon
adoption of HKAS 39
(Amendments) in 2006

Share of post-acquisition losses
(Note)

S ETRE 2R

R BTN
E 8@ EAIH30%
(1537 B B A

DEWERER (Hi)

Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entity at 31

December 2007 are as follows:

18. R—HEE AR 2R B

K-HEERAEZRHEM
J& W k38

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
41,003 41,003
3,354 3,354
44,357 44,357
(44,357) (44,357)

R-ZZEZ+E+-_A=+—H &K
EBAENRIZHBUT

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of registered
Form of registration/ capital indirectly
Name of jointly business operation held by the Group
controlled entity structure T AEBEEFEEZ  Principal activities
BENRER EBEBEN LEuH AMERZEHERS FEXH
Shenzhen Guo Wei Registration The PRC 46%  Manufacture of
Electronics Co., Ltd AL a2 telephone and
(“Guo Wei") related products
RYBIEE REEFE N
BRRAR (TEE]) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

18. INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
(continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's jointly controlled entity which is accounted for

using the equity method, according to its unaudited
management accounts is set out below:

Non-current assets FERBEE

Current assets mBEE

Current liabilities TBEE

Income WA

Expenses %

Loss for the year attribute AEBREAEE
to the Group B

Net assets attributable REBRLEE
to the Group HE

Note: The Group has discontinued including its share of results
of Guo Wei once the cumulative share of losses of Guo
Wei is equal to the investment cost in Guo Wei. The
Group will not resume including its share of any future
profits of Guo Wei until its share of such profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.

18. R—BeEREI kR B
h-BAEARE R REM
JE& WA A ()
REAEEAEAR L REBHE
BEER BN AL R
R BEREERIIMT

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
184,980 162,004
104,293 173,260
(935,921) (866,132)
991,402 1,634,279

(1,162,053) (1,795,827)

Wit : AERBEREHEBERZRFE
BERBRZRERAE &
et AR EEBR 2 %4 - b
IE A &R B 7 1 B R AR A R R
MASRAERZEGER
BAIREE T @t AREE L

BRI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

18. INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
(continued)
The amounts of unrecognised share of loss of Guo Wei,

based on its unaudited management accounts, are as
follows:

Unrecognised share of loss of a REEREREN
jointly controlled entity for —fAEE AT
the year BB

Accumulated unrecognised share Rt AR EN
of losses of a jointly controlled —fAEEREZ
entity BB

Trade and other receivables from the jointly controlled
entity mainly arose from the net result of purchase of
finished goods from Guo Wei and purchase of raw
materials on behalf of Guo Wei. The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Trade and other receivables from  EW—FHE2REE S
a jointly controlled entity AR R I HLAth B I EKIR
Less: Impairment loss recognised  J&l : B R ZREEE

18. R—HEE AR 2R B

K-HEERAEZRHEM
W RKOA ()

BREERACEREERE K
EREAERZBEREEMT

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$°000
TExT TET

(78,499) (74,312)

(157,530) (79,031)

FBUEERRESRRLEMER
RETERBRERRERK DR
REREBERER CEEFE - %
SEREER 2B RARENRE

RFER -

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
209,858 276,075
(209,858) (168,868)
- 107,207
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e B RERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

18. INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. R—RBEENalzER &

FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

(continued)

As at 31 December 2007, the net amount of due
from the jointly controlled entity was approximately
HK$209,858,000 (2006: HK$276,075,000). In view of
the operating loss derived from the jointly controlled
entity, an impairment loss of HK$209,858,000 (2006:
HK$168,868,000) in respect of the amount due from
a jointly controlled entity was recognised by the Group
for the year as a result of which the amount due from
a jointly controlled entity was fully impaired. The Group
does not hold any collateral over this balance. The Group
takes into consideration of the present value of the
estimated cash flows when determining the amount of
impairment loss.

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days
to its jointly controlled entity. The following is an aged
analysis of trade and other receivables from a jointly
controlled entity net of impairment loss at the reporting
date:

0 - 30 days TE=1H
31 - 60 days =+—ZEXTH
61 - 90 days ANT—ZENTH
Over 90 days N+ANUE

K-HEERAEZRHEM
W RKOA ()

RZ_EZELtF+_A=+—8"
BRZEEARZHREBIFENAR
209,858,000 C (ZEZ X F :
276,075,000 L) - R ZE &R
AEREEER  AEEERAE
EEK—HEE QR RIARRHE
{EE518209,858,000/8 7t (T T X
F :168,868,000/8 L) * At - fE
W—HEERRZREC L 2ER
B - ASEVERLBERIZTEL
MERR AEBAEREERE
BEzeHERSEZRMGFTREN
HI(E o

AEEGRTHAEEARZFEREE
HRANLTE FHEK—RFHEE
NAEIE 5 RH b EWKIE (HRR
BEER RNREBHZERRS TN
T~

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAT

- 9,509
- 7,962
13,463
76,273

107,207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B &EE
Product
development
expenditure
EmARXH
HK$'000
FHET
cosT R
At 1 January 2006 RZZEERFE—H—H 183,868
Additions NS 50,609
At 31 December 2006 and 2007 R-EERNFR_FTLF
+-A=+—H 234,477
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT  #85% Ri{E
At 1 January 2006 R-ZZETERF—HA—H 62,499
Impairment loss recognised BHRAREEE 72,531
Provided for the year REFHR 30,400
At 31 December 2006 RZZEZEREF+A=1—H 165,430
Impairment loss recognised ERAREERE 48,647
Provided for the year AFE MR 20,400
At 31 December 2007 R-_EELF+-_A=1+—H 234,477
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2007 RZZEELF+ZA=+—H -
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERF+ZA=1+—H 69,047
At 31 December 2007, the directors have reviewed the EECORHNEFEEN _ZZT+HF
carrying value of intangible assets and an impairment loss TZA=T—HBZEREE BRE
of approximately HK$48,647,000 (2006: HK$72,531,000) Eﬂ%ﬁZiﬁﬁPﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@Eﬂé
has been identified because the production of the #4948,647,000& T (Z BT N F ¢
relevant products was suspended. The carrying amount of 72,531,000 L) - EFEE (5
intangible assets specifically related to those products was BRZEEm) L EHELE 2 H
fully impaired. RE
Product development expenditure is amortised on a ERRAETHUNERED = FH#E -

straight-line basis over a period of three years.

“ERLEEFER FRMKAERAF [ 101
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

20. INVENTORIES

Inventories, representing finished goods, as at 31
December 2007 and 2006 are carried at cost.

21. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and bills receivables FEWE ZRA S EWEE
Less: allowance for doubtful debts & : REEE &

Other receivables H e W k08

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of
trade and bills receivables net of allowance for doubtful
debts at the reporting date:

20. &

21.

R-BEE+ER_TEEF+ A
=t+—HB FE(BRKSD) K
AFIER o

BUEZRN BURRER
H fth fE KK 0R

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
6,730 17,983
(1,183) =
5,547 17,983
6,162 11,375
11,709 29,358

ARERTHESEFZYHESR
HRANTH BRRKESEN
FREWRER (MNERERE) NRS

0 - 30 days EE=1H
31 - 60 days =t+—ZF,~TH
61 — 90 days ANT—ZEATH
Over 90 days NTBRE

ARG DM :
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
279 6,743
41 6,504
4,550 4,002
677 734
5,547 17,983
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

21. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 1. EREGRN EREER

(continued) H fth & WK TE ()
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses AEEREMEMHEFAIS LT
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit REZFZEEEZENHETHEZE

limits by customer. Credit limits attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. 72% of the trade receivables
is neither past due nor impaired and have the best credit
quality attributable under internal assessment by the
Group.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$677,000
(2006: HK$734,000) which are aged over 90 days and are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss, as the Group considered
such balance could be recovered based on historical
experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as RREHEz2EESHOT
follows:
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Balance at beginning of the year ~ RE)Z &k - =
Impairment losses recognised on  EWE HER 2 B R
trade receivables REEE 1,183 -
Balance at end of the year RF#E 2 iERR 1,183 -

The allowance for doubtful debts arise from individually
impaired trade receivables which have cash flow problem
and have taken into consideration of the estimated cash
flows of the relevant assets.

PzRERE SEEFMERY
REEGNEERE BEREZK
TR H72% /5 30 £ 8 5 T O (E -
I FRWFAE SR EABT LR
SRECEERZTR -

AEBrRWESEFRESHT &
EAREEA677,0008 T (ZEF
JNEE 734,000 70) 2 U FRIE
BFRREZERBBNLTE R
BEAHELASRNT AREY
ERLEFERRRESE AR
BELER AEBERAAMKE L
EREB AEEUEN L FEHRE
BERERR -

REEEER B @RI R R E 2 B
BoEF BHRASEHRS KM
BUEBEGEFBEREECRERE
MIAE & o

“ERLEEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
The Group’s trade, bills and other receivables that are

denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

HKD BT
GBP HagE
Others H

22. TRADE RECEIVABLE WITH INSURANCE
COVERAGE
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to

its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of
trade receivable with insurance coverage at the reporting

date:

0 - 30 days TE=7TH

31 - 60 days =+—ZEXTH
61 — 90 days ANT—HEATH

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. None of the trade receivable
with insurance coverage is past due or impaired and these
receivable has a good credit quality attributable under
internal assessment by the Group.

21.

22.

BUEZRN BURRER
H fth & WU KR ()
AEEZERKE SRS BREE

RE A EWRIES - WIRABBESE
EEREERAEENT

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
944 3,373

910 68

322 1,034

ERRZERE SRR

AEEGRTHESRP 2 FHEER
HRANTH BHEERRIER
BORRRMEBH KRR
N

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET
34,086 63,190
74,912 15,227

35,588 905

144,586 79,322

AREREMREMHELAIE T
BEEFPZEEERTATHEE
PZEERE SESFMERR
REEGNEERBE -CRRZE
W B 5 8RR 8 B R AR ORL(E Ut
FRURBESEANDFETES
RFEEERZFR -
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22,

23.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

TRADE RECEIVABLE WITH INSURANCE
COVERAGE (continued)

In order to draw the Group’'s trade receivables in
advance, the Group borrowed from the banks and
arranged insurance coverage on the trade receivables of
the Group's major customers. The Group has assigned
the right to receive the proceeds from the receivables
and the insurance compensation to the banks. The
trade receivables and the advances drawn thereon are
derecognised upon settlement from the customers or
receipt from the insurance compensation if the customers
do not make the settlement.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 52% (2006:
35%) and 52% (2006: 55%) of the total receivable with
insurance coverage was due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers within the
geographical segment of Western Europe, respectively.

BILLS RECEIVABLE DISCOUNTED WITH FULL
RECOURSE

The Group allow an average credit period of 90 days to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of bills
receivable discounted with full recourse at the reporting
date:

22.

23.

ERFRZEWRE S RN ()

REXAEBRCBRBESRR K
SERBTERLAARERKE
BEPZEBEZERFRGE - KK
B2 5 U R R B B MR 2 AT S R
BRRBEEE TSR T RTT
W E 5 BRI B X e E 5 B X
ZBRTINEPEBFAEIMER
AR E B R P AL EABHIA) B EX
HHER °

AEEEYEERBEFR ZER -
ARERRZERRBELERN
52% (ZZZRF :35%) &52%
(ZZTTRNEF :55%) A0 Bl KA
SERTERERHED B ZHEAE
FERARRFZHIA -

GEEN Y P I
=i

AEBRTHESRP 2 FHEER
HEANTH BHENEEZEHER

BZRUBRRAZENHERR LR
R

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
0 - 30 days TZ==1+H 12,086 57,138
31 - 60 days =+—ZEXTH 17,123 60,341
61 — 90 days ANT—ZEhATA 1,600 10,670
30,809 128,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

23.

24,

BILLS RECEIVABLE DISCOUNTED WITH FULL
RECOURSE (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. None of the bills receivable
discounted with full recourse is past due or impaired and
these receivable has the best credit quality attributable
under internal assessment by the Group.

Bills receivable discounted with full recourse and the
advances drawn on bills receivable discounted with full
recourse will be derecognised when the banks received
cash from the customers. On derecognition of bills
receivable discounted with full recourse, the difference
between their carrying amounts and the cash received by
the banks is recognised in profit or loss.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short term bank deposits with original maturity of
three months or less. The bank balances carry market
interest rate from 1.8% to 2.4% (2006: 2.4% to 3.1%)
per annum.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
a bank to secure short-term loans and are therefore
classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits
carry floating interest rate from 4.6% to 5.1% per annum.
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

23.

24,

WREHEREZEWMR
ZE @

AEERENEMHELAEG LT
BERFZEEERYAFRHZE
FPZEERE SESFMERY
REEGNEERE -MAZEE
RECRUMRERY BB E
AR - 1t % e SRR SR A AR AT
HESREEEER AR -

ERTEFPUBRER A2
B R R AR R 15 I T8 S
BREBERBCRKBARE LR
TR BUBHER - BURHER M A 2@
BREZEBAERRER  HEME
ERRTRIZACHNEEER

S Ty
miER °

BERARTER RITEH
ERE

RITEHRLBESBEAEERLAZ
BekRIBAA=ZAANERER
Bz RERITER - RITERIRT
BHEEE  FMERI8%E2.4%
(ZZETNF 24%%E3.1%) o

BEEBETERIEARSEHER
MmERITER 2 73 BRIIER
BEE BEARTETRZHF
R B FHEBL6%ES1% °
BEEBERTEFEREBETEES
BERERER -
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24.

25.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH (continued)

The Group's bank balances and cash that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

HKD BT
Others Ht

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payable FEFTE F BRI
Other payables and accrued HoAh e TR K
charges fEstEA

The following is an aged analysis of trade payable at the
balance sheet date:

0 - 30 days TE=7TH
31 - 60 days =t+—ZF,tH
61 — 90 days ANT—ZEATH
Over 90 days NTANRE

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit
timeframe.

24, CEFRTER BITEH
RES (&)
AEEZRAEBRELT O
B EEE Y i E e EE
mF -

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$°000
TEx TET
3,309 7,192

12 36

25. ENEZRAREMENK
15

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET
205,579 262,019
91,135 57,212

296,714 319,231

ERRNESEZIREERZRR
DT

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET
49,978 85,695
54,593 59,299
49,882 57,894
51,126 59,131

205,579 262,019

BEUEANLTRZTHEER-
ARECHREMBREREERR -
HRAMERNTIBTBREEHR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

25.

26.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The Group's trade and other payables that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

EUR BT
GBP W
HKD HAh

ADVANCES DRAWN ON TRADE RECEIVABLE
WITH INSURANCE COVERAGE AND
ADVANCES DRAWN ON BILLS RECEIVABLE
DISCOUNTED WITH FULL RECOURSE

The interest on the Group’s advances drawn on trade
receivable with insurance coverage and advances drawn
on bills receivable discounted with full recourse are
charged at variable rates ranging from 6.6% to 7.3%
(2006: 5.5% to 6.6%) per annum.

25.

26.

EBNEZRRRHEMESK
T8 (#)

ARBEZERNEZEREEMEN
FORF - WIHRNHEEEEEZY

RERIEENT
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
847 377
3,458 2,890

14,179 21,331

AXERREWEZRTZ
BREBAXMEEEERE
W RRIE 2 B

AREZEXEHRFEKE KX
ZEFREXMEEEERELE
BRUERBARBZERZFNERENF
6.6%%E73% (ZTZTF :55%
£6.6%) 2 FBFMEFE o
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27.

28.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS AND
MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to directors were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

The amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

The Group's amounts due to directors and minority
shareholders that are denominated in currency other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are
set out below.

HKD BT

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

TREREH

Financial guarantee contracts

In September 2006, the Group has given financial
guarantees to two banks in respect of the credit facilities
of HK$56,634,000 granted to Guo Wei for a period of ten
months. The directors assessed the fair value at the date
of granting the financial guarantees to be approximately
HK$3,354,000. During the year ended 31 December 2007,
the repayment period was extended by the bank to March
2008. The relevant bank loan was repaid by Guo Wei
in March 2008. The amount of financial guarantee was
amortised to the consolidated income statement over the
period of facilities granted.

27.

28.

ENEERIBRRME

BNESHEARERAA RENA
RERAEERE -

BNLBERFESEER 28
KBRS -

AEEENEERDBRERNE
FoUFARBAEREER CEE
WAHEEWT

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT TET

- 33,000
TREREN

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TET

- 2,683

RZEZENENA AEEEH
KTBERABTEAZEERD
56,634,000/% 7T [ W E $R 1T IR it ©
BER-EZCTBESBHERR
‘Mt A8 2T EDR3,354,000
BL - RBE_ZTZTLF+ A
Z+—HLEFE ROCHEFRH
EE_TENF=ZR -BEER=
TENF=-HEEEBARTER
CRER GEOCARERB B
RAEERE R R P E# o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWRERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 20. REHEER N 2EH

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and AEB v BEARERERE D
machinery under finance leases. The average remaining MELETHE &K - A THBYE
lease term is three years (2006: three years). Interest rates HE=ZF(ZEZEF:=F) o
underlying all obligations under finance leases are either FrERMEHEER NEK ZHBEN =
fixed or variable at respective contract dates ranging from ANSEZINHZEBEREEN
451% to 7.49% (2006: 4.49% to 6.46%) per annum. F451%%7.49% (Z T T~ F:
No arrangements have been entered into for contingent 4.49%ZE6.46%) 2 FEBNFIE - 25
rental payments. BERKAMET LA MLHE -

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BREHAS REHEERE
2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET FTERT TAT

Amounts payable under MEMREET
finance leases NS
Within one year —&FR 8,789 18,234 8,462 16,959
In more than one year but HiE—FE R
not more than two years kS 1,697 10,792 1,657 10,425
In more than two years but A FE 8
not more than three years =% - 1,729 - 1,698
10,486 30,755
Less: future finance charges B RKRREER (367) (1,673)
Present value of lease HERBRE
obligations 10,119 29,082 10,119 29,082
Less: Amount due for B —FRDH
settlement within BB 2508
one year (shown under (BRI &
current liabilities) B&) (8,462)  (16,959)
Amount due for settlement —FRIEBEER
after one year Z A 1,657 12,123
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(continued)

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured
by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

The Group’'s finance leases that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

29.

MEHAFHEN2ER @

ARERERER 2EH - JIA
HHARBEEE 2 ERIEER -

ARBzZBEMET  WINANAE
SEERCEERAEENT

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TAET

HKD AT 9,778 28,759
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

30.

31.

BANK BORROWINGS

Trust receipt loans, unsecured

ERKREER

- B

The loans carry interest at variable rates and will be repaid
within one year of the balance sheet date.

The effective interest rate on the Group's trust receipt
loans are 7.35% (2006: 6.5%) per annum.

BREEC1BTZEBAK :

m||m]
A
u)i{m
W
_FH

A—H

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each:

AUTHORISED: ERE

At 1 January 2006, 31 December M- TZNF—

2006 and 2007 “EERER

+-A=1+—

ISSUED AND FULLY PAID: ERTRHE

At 1 January 2006 RZETRF—

Exercise of share options 1T R R

Share placement fo &Rk fn

At 31 December 2006 R_ZTRE
+=ZA=+

Rights issues Az

Share placement fL &Rk fn

Exercise of share options 1T RE AR

At 31 December 2007 R_ZT+F
+ZA=+

Notes

P EE

30. RITEE

2007
HK$'000
TR

25,400

(LT LEDTR

A —FREE-

2006
HK$'000
THT

23,527

3t #% A 45

A

AEBEERUBEERZERERN

KRT735% (ZZFZTRF :65%) °
31. RRAF Z B A
Number of

shares Amount
B & B t8
HK$'000
FABTT
2,500,000,000 250,000
327,018,660 32,702
(a) 725,000 72
(b) 82,000,000 8,200
409,743,660 40,974
) 389,256,477 38,926
(d) 61,460,000 6,146
128,788 13
860,588,925 86,059
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 128,788 (2006:
725,000) share options were exercised at a subscription
price of HK$0.286 per share, resulting in the issue of
128,788 (2006: 725,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
in the Company and giving a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$37,000 (2006: HK$740,000).

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 10 July 2006,
Uniden Hong Kong Limited (“Uniden HK") subscribed
for 82,000,000 new shares of HK$0.1 per share in the
Company at HK$1.75 per share, resulting in gross proceeds
to the Company of HK$143,500,000. The proceeds
were used for general working capital of the Company.
Arrangement fees of approximately HK$2,427,000 was set-
off against share premium.

On 26 January 2007, the Company issued 204,871,830
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.3 each in the capital
of the Company, by way of rights issue, in the proportion
of one rights share for every two existing shares to the
shareholders whose names appeared on the Company’s
register at the close of business on 3 January 2007. The
gross proceeds of approximately HK$61,462,000 was used
for general working capital of the Company. Arrangement
fees of approximately HK$2,992,000 was set off against
share premium. As a result of the rights issue, the total
number of shares in issue was 614,615,490.

On 31 August 2007, the Company issued 184,384,647
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.38 each in the capital
of the Company, by way of rights issue, in the proportion
of three rights shares for every ten existing shares to the
shareholders whose names appeared on the Company’s
register at the close of business on 8 August 2007. The
gross proceeds of approximately HK$70,066,000 was used
for general working capital of the Company. Arrangement
fees of approximately HK$3,333,000 was set-off against
share premium. As a result of the rights issue, the total
number of shares in issue was 799,000, 137.

31. AR B Z B A (@)
B -

(a)

REBEE_ZEZE+F+-_A=1+—
BIEFE 128,788 (=TT X
4 : 725,0008%) B R E(EO. 178 T
ZARAREBERE RIEFH%0.286
B2 REETTF128,7881) (=
T T N4 1 725,00017 ) BB AR AE B
®17 BH & RE L AR37,000%8

T (ZZEZNE : 740,000 7T) °

BIERHRE T FLA+H

R+  Uniden Hong Kong
Limited ([ Uniden HK 1) A & %
1.75% 7T 2 fB 1% R #£82,000,000
W &R E 0. 178 T 2 A A B #T AR
D ARREEBEAERIBL
%6143,500,000/8 T ° T3 KIB T
REARRz —REEES -4
2,427,000 L2 ERE T ER M

R-ZZEZ+F—A=-+~H &
RAIAHERF N IZREESRR0.3
¥ L3 17204,871,830/% AN 1 &) ik
AEHBED HHAR-_ZEZL
F-A-BEERHRERKET
KRR REMzBREEHFE®R
B35 B M1 o] 3RS — AR AR AR 7 o
FTS R IB A4 561,462,000/
T DREARRRZ —REEE
£ ° 492,992,000 T 2 EEE
HighnELHE AEHRERKR B
BT 2 B E 614,615,490 -

RZZEZE+FNA=F+—H &
NE) AR S ZREE S R0.38
7B TC % 17184,384,647 1% AN A A i
AEHEGD AR -_TE+
FNANBEERBEREZT
ARrERAMzZBREREE T+
%38 A B 15 7] R B8 = IR B AR 4D o
FT 1S 5/ 1B A% 4 570,066,000/
T DREARARRIZ —REEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Pursuant to a placing and subscription agreement dated 13
September 2007, SunCorp Partners Limited agreed to sell
100 million shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.39
per share to an independent investor. The placing price of
HK$0.39 per share represented a premium of approximately
13.04% to the closing price of HK$0.345 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 12 September 2007,
being the last full trading day prior to the suspension in the
trading of the shares on the Stock Exchange pending the
issue of this placing and subscription announcement, and a
premium of approximately 12.39% to the average closing
price of HK$0.347 per share over the last five consecutive
trading days up to and including 12 September 2007, being

the date on which the placing price was fixed.

Pursuant to the same placing and subscription agreement,
SunCorp Partners Limited subscribed for 61,460,000 new
shares of HK$0.1 per share in the Company at HK$0.39
per share, resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of
approximately HK$23,969,000. The subscription price of
HK$0.39 per share represented a premium of approximately
13.04% to the closing price of HK$0.345 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 12 September 2007,
being the last full trading day prior to the suspension in
the trading of the shares on the Stock Exchange pending
the issue of this placing and subscription announcement,
and a premium of approximately 12.39% to the average
closing price of shares of approximately HK$0.347 per
share over the last five consecutive trading days up to and
including 12 September 2007, being the date on which the
subscription price was fixed. The proceeds were used for
general working capital of the Company. Arrangement fees
of approximately HK$291,000 was set-off against share
premium. As a result of the subscription of shares, the total

number of shares in issue was 860,588,915.

All the new shares issued during the year ended 31
December 2007 ranked pari passu with the then existing

shares in all respects.

Details of the share capital movement subsequent to the

balance sheet date are set out in note 42.

31. AR A 2R ()

Wit (&)

(d BEBHA-ZTLEALAt+=
H2BEERRBEHZE  SunCorp
Partners Limited Al =12 & f%0.39/8
TZEBERA—2BUREELE
100,000,0008% AR X 7] f 17 » B &
BEROIGETEBRHONR_EZ
+ENA+ =8 (BB D B R Fr
TEEEURBRREERAEL
Rz &E—EZEARHH) EBER
FITFT 3R < Wit (B & 1% 0.34578 7T 'a
B413.04%  TBBHREER
BRE_ZT+FENA+_H (HE
TREBZASN) LREBERHE
R 5 B2 FHKME3478 s
B4912.39% °

REZEE RRERZ - SunCorp
Partners Limitedi% & f%0.39/5 7T
ZE®AE61,460,0000% & A
AEREECABITZFKG
AR A A Y EE Pﬂ%?klﬁﬁ%‘f‘si
#)23,969,0008 7T - REE B K
ow%ﬁﬁkfﬁ_YYtin
A+=-H (RO RBRAEEFEE
@Lxﬁc%%ﬂa‘%& BAMAZ
RE—BEAXZAH) BB
#&Zﬂﬁlmﬁﬁxo.ma’émm{?‘i%ﬁ
13.04%  WEBROHREZERBE
“ZET+LFNR+-H (BMETER
BEZAH) I 5REERIEARS
BEBAA®S . FHRmEL
03478 L m B #12.39% ° FT 13
RBEDREARRIZ —KREESR
& ° #1291, oooﬁéﬁzgﬂﬁgmﬁi
Mt mEEsE  AZERBER M

E%éfﬁﬁifﬁz,%@%u%86o,588,915
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. URBAERB2RRZR S

Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the general
meeting held on 23 May 2002 under which the Company’s
board of directors may, at its discretion, grant options to
eligible persons including directors and employers, a new
share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme"”) was adopted
by shareholders, to subscribe for shares in the Company
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and employees.

The exercise price of the share options under the 2002
Scheme is determined, at the discretion of the directors,
and must be at least the higher of:

(a) the average of the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the relevant date of offer of
the share options;

(b) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the relevant date of offer of the share options,
which must be a business day; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any individual under the
2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
of share options must not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue.

BAGEERRESE

BE-—BR-_ZETE-_FAHA=-T=
BR{ITzZBREAS LBBERIR
EERCRBRERMNTBRES
E([ZZT=F518l)) - ARAE
EeHBERAEMEERAL(E
BEEREB)BETHERE MR
BARARGD  TEBENEREE
EEZNEE -

—ETFREZBRREITEE S
EERTIHSBERBERE UES
ERE)

(@) ERFBHBRERLEMAT
EeXERNBAERARER
JHZ AR R BN FHRTHE -

(b) AEABEER L B BN
BRBEXRGL ZARRRN
WHE ZBELEAREFER:
&

(0 ARARKHZEE -

BRE-ZZZE_FHERARAEM
HBRE S FTARE M H A
T BERE - RITERA T
BHZEEEETEHRBN T EE
172D #BEE30% °

REEZERERLBH 2 EM+Z
BABEBA  TERE-_ST=

BRI E WNCINREEE L
REMALTE TERE(BEDF
HEITERBRITEERE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

32.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

The 2002 Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing from the date of adoption of the
2002 Scheme, after which no further options shall be
granted but the options which are granted during the life
of the 2002 Scheme may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue and the provisions
of the 2002 Scheme shall in all other respects remain
in full force and effect in respect thereof. Options may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2002
Scheme at any time during the period as the board may
determine in granting the option but in any event not
exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

Options granted under the 2002 Scheme must be taken
up within 30 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance
of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company
by way of consideration for the grant.

At 31 December 2007, the number of shares in respect
of which options could be exercisable under the terms of
the 2002 Scheme was 23,625,982 (2006: 21,621,032)
representing 2.75% (2006: 5.28%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date.

2. URDRERZARZRS
(%)
BRASHBREE (F)

—ET_FErA B ERMB R
TERADABR Rz BHEAD
EERLERE ER_TT_F
ATEEAR L 2 BRI A RIEHE
BOBRSIEETUTR T2
—FREZAEEMAAEGLERT
HEDET RN - BREARNE
SEROBRERMRE ZHBHEA
EHMWEF_??_EﬁﬂZﬁ
T AT - s R A ER
Wﬁ$ SEBF L AEMER TFR -

BRE_ZT_FHERH 2 BRE
EREHDABHEH =THARNER-
RENBRER  ARAERAR
A AREIET -

R-_EZ+tF+-_A=+—8H"
BE_ZSE_FHEZBERATT
TR EREMBET I RMNEE
523,625, 982Hx(_$f/\$
21,621032Hx) HAARIRZAB
Z BT 13}275%<_”/\¢
5.28%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. LR RERZARZRS
(continued) (#)
The following table discloses the details of the Company’s TEBEEANARDABERERER
share options and the movements during the year: BERRE v #H)ES
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise at  Granted Exercised  Lapsed  Expired at
price fJanuary  during during during during 31 December
Date of grant pershare  Exercise period Notes 2007 theyear  theyear  theyear the year 2007
R-8%LE RZB8LE
-A-A t2B=1-H
ik ShRE kS it HROE  EARE  ERGR O ERAM EMER  HAGR
HKS
AT
(Note 2] (Note &)
(Wia) (hia)
Directors of the 4 December 2002 0286 4 December 2002 to 3December2007 (b) 1913670 - (127518 - (1786,09) -
Company “$2-F+-ARA “52-Ft-ARAZ-SEtF1-AZH
KRiES
3 March 2003 0377 3 March 2003 to 2 March 2008 (b) 4,490,744 - = = - 4490744
e RS fCRECS3\52AH
9 December 2003 0.999 9December 2003 to 8 December 2008 (0] 7,756,740 - - - - 775,740
EREEANA “TECEr-RARECTENETZANR
16 March 2004 0976 16 March 2004 to 15 March 2009 (b) 4,490,744 - - - - 4490744
ZEERE=ATAR ZSIME=ATAZCEENEZR AR
25 May 2007 0.409 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2012 ) - 11871 = = - 118872
“ERtERACTEA TRRLERACTRARCE-CERACTRA
18651898 1188727 (127578) - (1,786,092) 17,926,955
Other employees 4 December 2002 0.286 4 December 2002 to 3 December 2007 (b) 20412 - - - 0412 -
of e Companys 5=+ =AFA 2 g 0 2
subsidiaries
KAAKBATZ 9 December 2003 0,999 9 December 2003 to 8 December 2008 (0 1086964 - - - - 1,086,964
EthER ERETIANA 2 N e 1
18 October 2004 2.058 18 April 2005 to 17 October 2009
ZSERETATIR “ETRFRAT\REZTENETATLA (d) 1,861,758 - - (1861759) - -
25 May 2007 0.409 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2012
“ERLEIATRA ZERtERACTRAZCE-CFRACTAA o - 1135791 - (2133166) - 915
2969,134 11,357,291 - (3994924)  (20412) 10,311,089
Total
) 21,621,032 12,546,018 (127,578) (3.994,924) (1,806,504) 28238,044
Exercisable t the end of the year
REGRTTAE 23,625,982
Welghted average exercise price
METHGRR HKS0.893  HKS0409  HKS0.286  HK$1.177  HKS0.286  HKS$0.679
SBEBLEEHR FRNEERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Date of grant

RiHRE

Directors of the 4 December 2002
Company ZZZ-ECAMA
NG
3 March 2003
I

9 December 2003
e

16 March 2004
“ETMEZATAR

Other employes 4 December 2002
of the Companys ~EE-#+-AMA

subsidiaries
AATMEATZ 9 December 2003
e ZER-ETZANA
18 October 2004
“TIREATNR
Total
&5

Exercisable at the end of the year

REEETTAR

Weighted average
exercise price

IEPERE

Exercise

price

per share

SRIEE

HKS
B

(Note &)
(Kita)

0.286

0317

0.99

0.976

0.286

0.99

2.058

Exercise period

fies

4 December 2002 to 3 December 2007
“ERE+-AMAZ-EStET A=A

3 March 2003 to 2 March 2008
“TE-E-f-HE-ZF/\EZA-A

9 December 2003 to 8 December 2008
ZET-ECRNAECTEN\ETCANA

16 March 2004 to 15 March 2009
“TERE=A+AREEENEZATEA

4 December 2002 to 3 December 2007
“FE-F{-ARAZ-FELFT-AZH

9 December 2003 to 8 December 2008
ZEECEt-ANAECEENETZANA

18 April 2005 to 17 October 2009
ZEEREMAT\RECEEAETATLA

Notes

[

2. URDRERZARZRS

(&)

Outstanding
Outstanding Exercised Lapsed at
at during during 31 December
1 January 2006 the year the year 2006
RoRRAE R-BBAE
-A-A t=A=t-8
AR EnfR ER&H WA

(Note &)

(k)
1913,670 - - 1,913,670
4,490,744 - 4,490,744
7,756,740 = = 7,756,740
4,490,744 - 4,490,744
18,651,898 - - 18,651,898
20412 - - 20412
2,388,260 (739,953) (561,343) 1,086,964
2,485,091 - (623,333) 1,861,758
4,893,763 (739,953) (1,184,676) 2,969,134
23,545,661 (739,953) (1184,676) 21,621,032
21,621,032
HK$0.929 HK$0.999 HK$1.556 HK$0.893
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

The number and exercise price of the share options
brought forward from last year has been adjusted to reflect
the effect of the rights issues during the year ended 31
December 2007.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant to their 5th anniversary.

Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant.
Options granted to directors of the Company may be
exercised at any time from the date of grant to the 5th
anniversary of the date of grant. Options granted to
employees (other than directors) are exercisable subject
to (i) up to 50% of the options are exercisable from 9
December 2003 to 8 December 2004; (i) all remaining
options are exercisable from 9 December 2004 to 8
December 2008.

Options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50% of the
options are exercisable from 18 April 2005 to 17 October
2005; (ii) all remaining options are exercisable from 18
October 2005 to 17 October 2009.

Options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50% of the
options are exercisable from 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2008,
(ii) all remaining options are exercisable from 25 May 2008
to 24 May 2012.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average closing price immediately before the
dates of exercise is HK$0.280 (2006: HK$1.62).

3. IR AER 2 F
()

AZRS

et -

(a)

AR EFBBEHE RITEE
EERE URRBE-_ZTTL
FH_A=+-HUEFEETH
B g-

BhETHERLAHEERLA
HMERRF 2 ERBEREATTRE -

BY2ERERRLBB2EE
B-RYARAES ZBRE
HREBHEERHBHERR
FlEzEREBATE % TR
B(ESHUMN 2BREZITEA
REPATRE : ()RS ES0% B
RERTE-—_EE=F+=-ANA
BEZZZNF+=A/\B L
MAITE (D% T A B R
TH-_ZZME+_ALBEZRE
ZZZENEFTANBLEHEA
e -

%%%Zﬁﬁ@ﬁJMTﬁﬂ O
&= E50% 2 ERER B =
ﬁi@ﬂ+ﬂﬂiz_77£¢
TAtLREBERTE : R
BRIAEBRETE_TTRF
TATNEREZZZAF+A
TR IEHEATE -

B2 TEAZEIATRS : ()
BRRE0N BREATHR _FT
TtHFAA-THAERE_ZTEN
FRAAZ +@HEWWWHE
Ry T BT A BE LR AT —
NEEAZTHEHREZZ
FHEAZ+MA IEBREAITE -
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RERATELERERERITRE
Al 2 AN F 15 42 (& &0.28078

7E(_7 7/\¢

1.62/87C) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2007, options were

granted on 25 May 2007. The estimated fair value of the
options granted on those dates is HK$4,342,000.

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial Option
Pricing model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

2. URDRERZARZRS
(%)

REBEE-_ZT+LF+_A=+—
BLEFE ARARZZTLFH
TTRARLBRE - BET AR
HEREREBREH AT ER
4,342,000/ 7T °

AFETIA-BAREEEEAG
- HZBRABAZHEENAT

Fair value per option ShEkE s A THE HK$0.343
Closing share price at date of grant Ry BBz W mE HK$0.411
Exercise price (before the adjustment 1TEE CRRERELHE)

for rights issue) HK$0.405
Expected life TR Five years T £F
Expected volatility TEHIR 18 94.67%
Risk-free interest rate [ e ) 4.59%
Expected annual dividend yield B FREE 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the past 360
days to the date of grant. The expected life used in the
model reflects the option life from the date of grant.

The risk-free rate interest was based on the yield of
Exchange Fund Note.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$2,880,000
for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: Nil) in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

EFHERBABEZEROAHLERE
360 AR RIRE 2 AT KBS E -
ZEAFTAZEHE BUE R ER
B AR 2 AR -

AZ“J“‘“’W@H%@I\E%@%B%Z
H&Z Sat &

AEBEHEE -_ZT+LF+ A
=+—HLEFERARARAERLEZE
P % B 52 42 59 522,880,000/ 7T (=
TTRFE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

33. EXEHBAR
AT RRAREEERBEREF

33. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities

recognised and movements thereon during the current ERRAZEIEZELEREB(EE)ARE
and prior reporting years: N H
Accelerated
tax deduction
Accelerated on product
tax development Tax
depreciation expenditure losses Total
EmAEIMLZ
MERERE MEBIE A RERS - H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR THBT TET
At 1 January 2006 RZEETF—A-H 3) 23,046 (16,888) 6,155
Charge (credit) to FARGRENER
consolidated income n (GtA)
statement for the year 49 (9,294) 3,090 (6,155)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEETA=1—-H 46 13,752 (13,798) -
(Credit) charge to FRRGARER
consolidated income (§tA) 0B
statement for the year (46) (1,517) 1,563 -
At 31 December 2007 RZEZ+ET-A=T—H - 12,235

(12,235) =

At the balance sheet date, the Group had tax losses of

REEH AEBZHEABRYD

approximately HK$162,526,000 (2006: HK$149,196,000) £162,526,0008 T (ZEE X
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax F 149,196,000 L) * Al £ A
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately {EIK $5 K 2 % 7 o ?fﬁﬁa & 18

HK$69,914,000 (2006: HK$78,846,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining approximately HK$92,612,000 (2006:
HK$70,350,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward

#69,914,0008 L (Z T T < F -

78,846,000/ 7T) B R IE L BE
BEE-BRARSGMRZAAE
A A ot I 4% B 88 T £992,612,000
B (ZZZTNF 170,350,000

indefinitely. L) BRBELENBEEE -HEERE
] R B A 8 o
—RRLEEH sRNEARAD | 121
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 3. TEHFBRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group REBE_TT+F+_A=+—H
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of EFE AEETRBELAOHEGBEE
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment with RABEX193,0008 T (ZFEZ N
a total capital value at the inception of the leases of F 13,524,000 0) ¥ BE
approximately HK$193,000 (2006: HK$3,524,000). REERETURERERY -
35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT 35. REHEAE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Minimum lease payments paid under FRBELLEHEL 2
operating leases during the year: REMEE :
— Premises S ES 3,567 1,178
As at the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments REER ZXEERETUWERT
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HIFEHR B 7 AR B E & E
operating leases in respect of certain premises which fall BAARSERSEAENT :

due as follows:

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

Within one year —FR 2,955 1,070
In the second to third year inclusive ~ E-_FEF=F (BEEEWF) 8,048 69
Over five years HBiBHF 7,549 -

18,552 1,139

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHEs He  HERAEE
Group for certain of its office properties and warehouses. HETHAZMEREEMERN
Leases are negotiated for an average term of five years 2He - MENTHERERESE —
and rentals are fixed for an average of five years. R MEEFFASRFEE X °
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36.

37.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENT 36.
Capital expenditure in respect of SUERRE K&

acquisition of plant and machinery ez BETA

contracted for but not provided in BARRERE I BHE

the consolidated financial statements REZEXRFAX
Capital expenditure in respect of FhUUE B

acquisition of intangible assets BEZEH

contracted for but not provided BARRERE I

in the consolidated financial BRBEZ

statements BARRX
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37.

On 28 February 2007, the Company was served with an
Amended Writ issued and filed by Uniden and Uniden
HK on 1 February 2007 against the Company, SunCorp
Partners Limited and the Company’s three directors and a
former director, alleging that certain misrepresentations
had been made by the Company and its three directors
and a former director, and that the Company had
breached the warranties of the subscription agreement,
and the terms of the business alliance agreement and
the master production agreement. On the basis of these
allegations, Uniden sought, inter alia, (i) a recession of
the subscription agreement, pursuant to which Uniden HK
acquired 82,000,000 new shares in the Company, and the
consequential return of the relevant subscription money
of HK$143,500,000; (ii) damages for misrepresentation
or breach of warranty; (iii) damages for breach of the
business alliance agreement and the master production
agreement; and (iv) the legal costs of this action, plus
interest.

BAERE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
1,061 -
2,449 1,776
FREE

R-ZZBELE-_A=-+NB &K
A7) % #EUniden & Uniden HKR
—EE+E-_RF—HMARA
SunCorp Partners Limited 2 X2 &
CREER—RAAEERHRT
BZEEIES BEARTIRAE
CREER—RAAESELET
RERM - URARRBERRBE
HEcREREEBBHZERE
EBBEIGR ERZERE
UnidenZk (KR 818) (VBUIEE
Uniden HKU4% #%82,000,000/% & 2
BIRTAR 17 2 R B h =% 3 AR (B AE B 2R
B8 1% %0143,500,0007% 7T 5 (i)t &
ERGERREFREBEZSHE
(IEREEBBEREREELD
ZEMEERE RivBERLEE
BT ERBAURFE -
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 37. AAREE (#|)

On 6 February 2007 and 20 March 2007, the Company
issued announcements, in relation to these legal
proceedings and the termination by the Company of the
business alliance agreement and the master production
agreement. The Company and its three directors and a
former director strongly refute and intend to vigorously
contest Uniden's allegations, and are of the opinion,
having taken legal advice, that the action can be
successfully defended.

On 2 August 2007, the Company served a defence
and a counterclaim against Uniden and Uniden HK for
damages of HK$354 million (plus interest) based on the
breaches by Uniden and Uniden HK of the terms of the
master production agreement and the business alliance
agreement. Uniden served its reply and defence to the
counterclaim on 13 November 2007. Up to date of the
report, the Court has not yet laid down a timetable for
the next stages of the proceedings.

In addition, a subsidiary of the Company was named as
a defendant in a High Court action and a District Court
Civil action in respect of alleged breaches of contractual
undertakings for an amount of HK$1,651,830 and
HK$674,856, respectively. The subsidiary strongly resists
these claims.

In additional to the above, in September 2006, the Group
has given financial guarantees to two banks in respect
of the credit facilities of HK$56,634,000 granted to Guo
Wei for a period of ten months. During the year ended
31 December 2007, the repayment period was extended
by the banks to March 2008. As at 31 December 2007,
the credit facilities utilised by Guo Wei amounting to
approximately HK$950,000 (2006: HK$31,504,000). The
relevant bank loans were repaid by Guo Wei in March
2008.

RZET+F-_ABRZZTTL
FZAZ+H ARAFRUEER
FARARAR I ZAERBERE
REEBHBBRELAM - RNAEK
H=%EER—RBAAEESFEIUR
B RGN EUndenz 1615 - I
EEREEERGRARBBERT
IR (k% -

RZZEZTLFNHAZR AQA
R #EUniden & Uniden HKE & &
EBEGERBEBRBHBRE ZER
i i i $F ¥ Uniden & Uniden HK
IMBEERRBR  RREBEER
{§354,000,000% ¢ (EF &) o
UnidenRZEZ+F+—A+=H
REHHRARZEDERNMAEE -
BEEARKERH  ZRERTET
—BEERFRZERE -

goh - ARF - BARE X
SEERRER—REE AR XE
RPN AME DRI BEBE
1538 1,651,830/ T % 674,856/8
LA REE - ZHBARH LS
AREHARE o

BtatEN R_TTXFELA -
AEBERATRBEABRTEAZ
1= & Bt #856,634,0005% 7T 4] /M [ 37
TiRESBER REE-Z2Z+
F+-A=+—-HILEE £170
BEFBEE_TTENF=ZA -1
ZETEFE+ZA=T—HB BE
A ZEERBA A950,000% T
(ZTZ N5 ¢ 31,504,000/ 7T) °
BREER-_ZSZNF=ARBEEH
RITER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 38. BIKERIGTE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees.

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in
other countries in which the Group operates, the Group
is required to operate defined contribution schemes
managed by the relevant jurisdictions and to make
contributions for its eligible employees. The contribution
borne by the Group is calculated according to the
regulations stated by the relevant jurisdictions.

The total cost charged to consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$612,000 (2006: HK$734,000)
represents contributions payable to the above schemes by
the Group in respect of the current year.

ARERMAERBRERERREHR
BHEAEREE - AAEEER
AEBEEIDMERE Y AET
ANEBZESHHEE - ARERZ
ATElERS %z H e R BER
ZEFBE DR -

BREASELEMEZHBERZ
MR LA AEE AR S
HERZEERERE 2 REH/KE
2 YHHESEREEFELMHR
AEEAE 2B REEERDA
EEIIERIETE

Rira W m RPN 2B AL
612,000 L (ZET X &F -
734,000 ) * NASERAFEER
P ET B 2 K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following significant

39. BEAER S

TR AREREREE

transactions with related parties: TXZHWT :
Related parties Nature of transactions 2007
BEAL RHME HK$'000
TR
Guo Wei - a jointly Purchase of finished goods by the Group 987,410
controlled entity AEBEEERNM
BlEl - 8248
Purchase of plant and machinery by the Group -
AEEBEERFE Kk
Financial guarantee given by the Group 950
to banks for credit facilities utilised (note)
AEEREBA 2 EERBMRITRME
TRER (Ht)
Purchase of materials on behalf of Guo Wei
by the Group 757,914
AEBERRBEBRBMH
Cash advance by the Group 102,651
AEEBXRE
Expenses paid on behalf by the Group 10,190
AEERXAX
Uniden - a substantial Purchase of finished goods by the Group 21,116
shareholder AEEREERKM

Uniden - T BRE

Sales of plant and machinery by the Group -

REE L E RS K s

Note: Details of the financial guarantees are set out in notes 28
and 37.

ALT#fT2E

2006
HK$'000
T
1,629,713

14,141

31,504

1,258,249

127,655

32,489

24,876

1,190

Wi eRMERZFHEHNME28R

37 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ®w R KE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The remuneration of key management personnel of
the Group, representing directors, during the year, is as

follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments expenses

A
BRI R A

PARR 1 IR A 2 R 2 IS

40. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

Details of the balance sheet of the Company as at balance

sheet date are as follows:

39. BEALRS ()

AEEEBEEE (MEE)RNFAZ
HmT :

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
5,831 10,239
62 48

330 =

6,223 10,287

40. XRF2EERER

ARBZEERBERNEERHZF

2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i FEx TET
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIE - =
Deposits and prepayments we RIERNFIA 175 243
Tax recoverable A U Bl i 18 - 189
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE 137 108
Total assets BEE 312 540

Deposits received and Blre REFER
accrued charges 45,740 4,805
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B R E k1A (a) 132 -
Amounts due to directors S EE R (a) 9,675 -
Financial guarantee contracts SREREH 456 2,683
Total liabilities BafR 56,003 7,488
(55,691) (6,948)

Capital and reserves AR R
Share capital AR 86,059 40,974
Reserves f#E (b) (141,750) (47,922)
(55,691) (6,948)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

40. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(@) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

(b) Details of changes in reserves of the Company are as

follows:

At 1 January 2006

Share placement

Share issue expenses
Exercise of share options

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2006

Rights issue
Share placement

Share issue expenses
Exercise of share options
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
Release of equity-settled
share-based payments

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2007

TERRE
AEEEHR

BHETRAX
TERRE
ERUARALE LA
BN RER AR
BEARAEE LA
BRI BERZ AR
rEREBR

’_\_

[T

=
A

- F
T=H=+—H

40.

YN A -§-3-LE ¢ )
HiiF -

@ BABRFEAAEEFR RERAR
ZRENEGEE

b) AREFHZEBFEWT :

Share

Share  Contributed option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
ki@ AABR BRERHE ZitEE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TER TAT
37,697 80,851 1,618 (38,482) 81,684
135,300 - - - 135,300
(2,427) - - - (2,427)
668 - - - 668
- - - (263,147) (263,147)
171,238 80,851 1,618 (301,629) (47,922)
92,602 - - - 92,602
17,823 = = = 17,823
(6,616) - - - (6,616)
24 - - - 24
- - 2,888 - 2,888
= = (1,618) 1,618 =
- - - (200,549) (200,549)
275,071 80,851 2,888 (500,560) (141,750)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the underlying net assets of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by
the Company and the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition
at the time of a group reorganisation in a previous year.

ZNNCIE ON R 3R NN 18 = N
BRAIEERBAZEHZENE
B BXRAE-BEFEETSE
EEARUBMETERRESZ
BABEME ZER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HILFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY

M. AR FTEMBRATFHE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2007 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully

ARRIZEIENBRAR_ZEL

FT-A=+—HZHBWT:

Attributable equity

establishment ~ Form of issued share/ interest indirectly
Name of subsidiary and operation  legal entity  registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HMAL/ R ERTRME FATEERRZ
(i) Pk REEHE EEEREA B&/ERER RagREE IERH
2007 2006
HB Electronics (China) Limited British Virgin Limited US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEET (PE) BRAA Islands company ordinary share REER
RBRZEE  ARAA ERRIET
MONDIAL Communications Hong Kong Limited HK$2  100% 100%  Research, development and
Limited & company ordinary shares marketing of telephones
EERBAERAR BRAF LERIBT and related equipment
HE ERREREFER
RERE
SunCorp Communications England Limited £500,000 100% 100%  Marketing and customer
(Europe) Limited and Wales company ordinary shares liaison
ARRREBS ARAA % B/r500,000% 5 ETTHREREFSE
SunCorp Communications Hong Kong Limited HK$775,000  100% 100%  Trading of telephones
Limited i company ordinary shares EEE;
HiEBRERAA BRAR HK$225,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(Note 1)
Ll
775,000 7T
EREERLTR
225,000 7T
(Hri1)
SunCorp Industrial Limited Hong Kong Limited HK$100 100% 100%  Raw material sourcing
MBEXERAA B company ordinary shares RERMH
BRAR LARRI00ET

“EZLEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable equity

interest indirectly

held by the Company Principal activities

ARAABEREZ
Brgakl  IERE
2007 2006

97% 97%  Co-ordination, repair and
servicing of telephones and
related equipment

B EERREBER
RERE

100% 100%  Trading of telephones
mEE

BE&q

100% - Manufacturing of telephones

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. ARRAEERE D TF5E (@)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
establishment  Form of issued share/
Name of subsidiary and operation  legal entity  registered capital
HMAL/ R BETRAR
KWEARER REBERE EERREA RE/EfEs
SunCorp (Service & Distribution) ~ England Limited £1,750
Limited and Wales company ordinary shares
ARHREBE  BRAA LER1, 75058
SunCorp Information Technologies  Hong Kong Limited HK$2
(Asia) Limited B company ordinary shares
MEAANE (B ERAA BRAR L@ T
Meizhou Guo Wei SunCorp PRC Limited HK$42,000,000
Electronics Company Limited e company registered capital
(Note 2) BBAF FER
BAERNRETARAT 42,000,000 7
(Hrit2)
Notes:

1. The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the respective companies or to participate in
any distribution on winding up.

2. Meizhou Guo Wei SunCorp Electroncis Company Limited is
a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

et -

1. EEBRERETHEEZEKREZ
BF TEEBEBRBETZEAAZ
BZERMBRRAEZBAMLNE
ZERERRELRE HHE

BKEERI DK

2. BMEBRFBREFERAARIN
HAEELE -

ESRA ERAIAKE KB
ARIHAKECXEREERARE
EXTBRE -KRESZER JI
HEMHE AR 2 SRR TR o

I AR BS R AR R - %
BRARGERTEMNERES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B ERERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TT+F+-A=1+—HIFE

42. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 42. EREEE

On 13 December 2007, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with SBI E2-Capital (HK) Limited in
relation to the proposed placing of the convertible notes
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000
to six independent individuals and institutional investors.
The completion of the placing agreement is conditional
upon the approval by shareholders at the Special
General Meeting held on 23 January 2008. The placing
of convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$67,900,000 was completed on 28 March 2008.
The gross proceeds from the placing of approximately
HK$67,900,000 will be used for general working capital
of the Group. Details of the placing are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 December 2007 and
31 March 2008.

RZEZ+E+ZA+=H EA2Q
A]#SBI E2-Capital (HK) Limitedz]
UREHE AAERRREER
& #8%8100,000,000/8 7T 2 AT #£ ik
ZERTAAMBIULEARKEIR
BEE -BREBREAFRERZ
NE-—RBZ+=HBETZREE
ReL#HAER  FETK BER
% #2%867,900,000/8 ;T 2 AT IR =
B—EER_ZEZNF=A=-FTAN
BREX BEEZHBREBELENE
67,900,000 7T - BAEAEE 2
—REEES HEZHBENE

REAMAZZETLETATN
BRZZEZENF=ZA=F+—HzZA
ff o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B & B E
RESULTS £
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=+—HLEE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FHEIT FETT FAT FET
(restated)
(E7)
(Note)
(K1t)
Revenue Wi 1,353,518 2,338,529 2,001,007 1,765,156 1,116,279
Profit (loss) for AN A
the year (EB#R) 51,758 95,806 7,537  (349,638) (385,864)
Attributable to: THATELS :
Equity holders of ~ ANAAIRRA
the Company SZEPN 51,718 95,726 7,608  (349,592)  (385,809)
Minority DERRR
shareholders 40 80 (71) (46) (55)
51,758 95,806 7,537  (349,638) (385,864)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LEREE
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+-—H
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FAT FERT
Total assets BEE 376,094 665,536 860,129 585,609 249,150
Total liabilities wmamE (283,896)  (482,045)  (691,013)  (624,769)  (522,652)
Net assets (liabilities) ;F & & (B &) 92,198 183,491 169,116 (39,160)  (273,502)
Equity contributable 72 A]R%AR
to equity holders 155 ARE(G
of the Company #Em 91,997 183,210 168,906 (39,324)  (273,611)
Minority interests VSRR 201 281 210 164 109
92,198 183,491 169,116 (39,160)  (273,502)

Note: Figures have been restated to recognise retrospectively for the

Bet  MEBFELEDN  AEWERA-F

equity-settled share-based payments in relation to the share
options granted after 7 November 2002 and had not yet been
vested on 1 January 2005.

ToFt-ALARBHAN -T2
RF—A-BHKBEZBRENS
BB EIL AR AR Z (3 -
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